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YANLORD LAND GROUP LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The dircctors present their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group and
the statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity of the Company for the financial year
cnded December 31, 2013,

1 DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company in office at the date of this report are:

Zhong Sheng Jian
Zhong Sitiang

Chan Yiu Ling

Houg Zhi Hua

Ronaid Seah Lim Siang
Ng Ser Miang

Ng Shin Ein

Ng Jui Ping

2 ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE BENEFITS
BY MEANS OF THE ACQUISITION OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Neither at the end of e financial year nor at any time during {he financial year dig there subsist any
arrangement whose object is (0 enable the ditectors of 1the Company 1o acquire bencfits by means of the
acquisision of shares or debentures in the Company or any ether body corporate, except for the oprions
mentionzd in paragraph 5 of the Report of the Directors,

YANLORD LAND GROUP LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES

The directors of the Company holding office at the end of the financial year had no interests in the share
capital and debentures of the Company and related corporations as recorded in the register of directors’
shareholdings kept by the Company under Section 164 of the Singapore Companies Act, Cap 50 (*Act™)
except as follows:

Holdings Holdings in which
registered in the direclors are deemed
aame of direclors lo have an interest
Nome of directors and companiss At beginning Al end At beginning Atend
in which imerests are held of year of year of year of year
The Company
a}  Ordinary shares
Zirong Sheng Fian 9,067,000 9,067,000 1,278,350,000 1,278,390,000
Zheng Siliang 320,000 320,000 - -
Chan Yio Ling @ 720,000 720,000 25,000 25,000
Hong Zhi Hua @ 630,000 40,000 - B
Ronald Seah Lim Stang 20,000 20,600 - -
Ng Ser Miang 705,000 705,000 - .
Ng Shin Ein 118,000 118,000 - -
Ng ki Ping 100,000 100,000 - .
1) Convertible notes due 2014 (S5'000)
Mg Shin Ein 1000 1,750 - B
c}  Senivr notes due 2017 (US$'000)
Zhong Sheng Jian 2,500 2,500 - .
Ng Ser Miang 2,000 2,000 - -
Ng Shin Ein 200 200 - -

Zhong Sheng Jian is deemed to be interested in 1,278,390,000 (2012 : §,278,390,000) osdinary
shares in the Company held by Yanlord Holdings Ple. Ltd. ("YHPL"}. YHPL is a company
which is owned by Zhong Sheng Jian (95% shareholding interest) and his spouse
(5% sharelwlding intcrest),

2 25,000 shares in the Company held by the spouse of Chan Yiu Ling.

™ Interest held via nominee account.
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3 DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Cont'd) 4 DIRECTORS’ RECEIPT AND ENTITLEMENT TO CONTRACTUAL BENEFITS
The directors’ beneficial interest in other related corporations® shares and debentures were as follows: Since the beginning of the financial year, no dircctor has received or become entitled lo receive a benefit
which is required to be disclosed under Section 201(8) of the Act, by reason of 4 contract made by the
Holdings Holdings in which Company or a related corporation with the director, or with a firm of which he is 2 member, or witha
regisiered in the direclors are deemed company in which he has a substantial financial interest, except for safaries, bonuses and other benefits
name of dicectors 10 have an interest as disclosed in these financial statements or the financial statements of e relevant relaled corporations
Name of fﬁTeClD“ and comparies Al beginring Atend At beginning Atend within the Group, if any. Certain directors received remuneration from related corporations in their
in which iinerests are held _Ofyear  ofyear _ofyear | of year capacity as directors and/or executives of those relaled corporations.

Immediate holding company

Yanlord Holdings Pee, Lid. 5  SHARE QPTIONS AND CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Ordi ha
{Ordinary shares) 5.1 Yanlord Land Group Share Option Scheme 2006 (“ESOS 2006")
Zhong Sheng Han 95,000,000 95,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000
The ESQS 2006 will provide eligible participants with the oppertunity {o participate in the equity of
the Company and motivate them towards better performance through increased dedication and loyatry.
Relaled corporations The aggregate number of shares that may be issued or issuable under the plan at any time may not
exceed 15% of the then issued share capital,

(i) Yanlord Capitel Pre, Ltd.

(Ordinary shares) The Remunerasion Committee {“RC™) comprises 3 independent directors, and they are Ng Jui Ping,
. Ronald Szah Lim Siang and Ng Shin Ein. The RC administers the ESOS 2006.
Zhong Sheng Jian - - 1 1
Options may be granted 1o ermployces and direetors of the Company or any of the related entities,
which include the subsidiaries or any entities in which the Company holds a substantial ownership

(1) Yanlord Iusieies Pie. Lid. ¥ N ! ! P A
interest, including any such employees or directors who are associates of the controlling shareholder.

(Crdinary shares)
The controlling shareholder is not eligible to participate in the ESOS 2006.
Zhong Sheng Jian - - 1 |
In generai, the plan administrator determines the exercise price of an option, The exercise price may
be a fixed or variable price related to the fair market value of the ordinary shares. The term of each
By virtue of Section 7 of the Act, Zhiong Sheng Jan is deemed to have an iawrest in the Cempany and award will be stated in the award agreement, The term of an award will not exceed 10 years from the
all the related corporations of the Company, date of the grant, or five years from the date of grant in the case of options granted to non-cxecutive
directors or employees of related entities other thau subsidiaries. In general, the pian administrator
The directors’ interests itz the shares and senior notes of the Company as at Janvary 21, 2014 were the determines, or the award agreement specifies, the vesting schedule,

same as at December 31, 2013,
The Board of Dircctors may at any time amend, suspend or terminate the ESOS 2006. Amendments
to the plan are subject to sharcholder approval to the extent required by Eaw, or stock exchange rules
or regulations, Additionally, shareholder approval is specifically required 10 increase the number of
shares available for issuance uwnder the plan or (o exiead the ierm of an option beyond 10 yeass.
Unless terminated earlier, the plan will expire and no further awards may be granted after the tenth
anniversary of the sharcholder’s approval of the plan.



YANLORD LAND GROUP LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

5.2

SHARE OPTIONS AND CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Cont'd)

This scheme will coatinue to be in force at the discretion of the RC subject to a maximum period of
10 years commencing on the date the ESOS 2004 was adopted by the Company in general meeting,
However, ESOS 20056 may continue beyond the above stipulated period with the approval of
shareholders by ordinary resolution in general meeting and of any relevant authorities that may then
be reguired.

During the financial year, no opticn was granted under the ESOS 2006.

Convertible Notes

In year 2009, fhe Company issued convertible notes due in 2014, details of which are disclosed in
MNote 23 to the financial statements.

OPTIONS EXERCISED

During the financial year, ro share of the Company or any corporation in the Group was allotted and
issued by virtue of the exercise of options to take up unissued shares of the Company or any cosporation
in the Group.

UNISSUED SHARES UNDER OPTIONS

There was no oplion granted by the Company or any corporation in the Group lo any person to take up
unissued shares of the Conspany or any corporation in the Group a5 af the end of the financial year,

YANLORD LAND GROUP LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

8 AUDIT COMMITTEE

At the date of this report, the Audit Committes comprises the following members:

Ronald Seah Lim Siang Chairman and Lead Independem Director
Mg Tui Ping Independent Director
Ng Shin Ein Independent Direelor

The Audit Commiltee carried out its functions in accesdance with Section 201B(5) of the Act. The
functions perfonned ate dewiled in the Corporate Governanee Sutsment,

The Audit Committee has recommended 1w te direetors the nomination of Deloilte & Touthe LLP,
Singapore for re-appointment as externzl awditors of the Growp at the fortheoming Annual General
Mesting of the Company.

9  AUDITORS

The auditers, Deleite & Touche LLP, Singapere, have expressed their willingness o acoept
re-aprointment,

ON BEHALF OF THE DIRECTORS

ZIm;lgs w“ghm

Ao YL

Cir

March 14, 2034
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STATEMENT GF DIRECTORS

In the opinion of the directors, the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of
financial position and statemenl of chanpes in cquity of the Company sct out on pages 10 1o 101 are drawn
up so 38 to give 3 fruc and fair view of (he state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at
Decomber 3§, 2013, and of the results, changes in equity and cash flows of e Group and the changes in
equity of the Campany for the [linanwial yuar then ended and at the date of this statement, there are

reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be uble to pay s debis when they fall due.

ON BEHALF OF THE DIRECTORS

(WS,

Zhong Sheng .lmn

c(wof

Chan Yiu

March 14, 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

YANLORD LAND GROUP LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accarnpanying financial statements of Yanlord Lard Group Limited {the "Company™) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group™) which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group
and the statement of financial position of e Company as at December 31, 2043, and the consolidated
statement of profic or loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and slatement
of eash flows of the Group and the statement of changes in equity of the Company for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set out on pages 10 1o 101.

Management’s Respousibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act {the “Act") and Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards, and for devising and maintaining 2 systesn of internal accounting contrals sufficient to
provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and
transzctions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary fo permit the preparation of tue
and fair profit and loss accounts and balance sheets and to maintain accountability of assels.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibilily is to express an opinion on thesc financial stalements based on our audit. 'We conducted our
audit in accordance wih Singapare Standards on Audiling. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
stalemients are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obrain avdit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial staternants, The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assassment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 10 fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevamt to the emity's preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
cotrol.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the
reasonablencss of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide z basis for our audit opinion.

B LR R LA I L R E P
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[NDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

YANLORD LAND GROUP LIMITED

Qpinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the staicment of ﬁ‘nnncial pusi‘ti.on and
statement of changes in equity of the Company are properly drawn up in accorfian?c with the provisions _uf
{he Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give 2 true and {air view of _thc state of affairs
of the Group and of the Company 1s at December 31, 2013 and of the results, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Group and changes in equity of the Company for (he year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legat and Repulatory Requirentents

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act {o be kept by the Company and I?y
those subsidiaries incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in

accordance will the provisions of the Aet.

Delstibe W Toudne UK
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants

Singapore

March 14, 2014

YANLORD LAND GROUP LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Decemnber 31, 2013

ASSETS

Nan-carrent assets

Property, plan: and equipment

Invesunent properties

Propertics for development

Investments in subsidiaries

Investment in an associate

Investments in jointly

controlled entities

Non-trade amount due from
non-contrelling shareholder
of subsidiary

Tntangible asset

Deferred tax assets

Derfvative financial instruments

Total non-current assels

Current assets
Inventories
Completed propearties for sale
Properiies under developiment
for sale
Trade reccivables
Other receivables and deposiis
Non-trade amounts due from:
Subsidiarics
Associate
Jointly controlled entities
Non-controHing shareholders
of subsidiaries
Other related party
Held-for-trading investment
Pledged bank deposits
Cash and cash equivaients
Total current assets

Total nssets

Note

GROUP COMPANY
2013 2012 2013 2012
RMB'000  RMBGO0  RMB'GO0  RMB'0OD

757,334 594,202 . .
8764770 7,975,200 ; .
9,960.451 16,079,251 ; .

- - 2,465,544 2,524,468
500,486 335,723 . )
158,367 - - -

813 613 - .

219,707 123,957 . _

20,402 - . .

70,482,130 25,113,956 2,465,544 2,624,468
40,830 39,527 - -
4,324,410 4,608,540 - .
28,640,895 20,284,446 . .

39,213 50,964 . .
411,268 302,519 3 274

. . 12,785,666 11,037,800

354 213 . .

230 ; . .

376,380 331,424 . .

551 567 . .
11,056 11,311 - -
29,643 15,072 . .

7,082,045 3,540,577 6,894 2,601
40056875 20,185,160 12792563 11,040,675
61,439,005 54,200,116 15258107  13.665.143



YANLORD LAND GROUP LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF TINANCIAL POSITION (Cont’d)

Deeember 31, 2013

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital and reserves

Share capital

Reserves

Equity atiributable 1o equity
helders of the Company

Non-controlfing interests

Total capital and reserves

Non-current liabilitics

Bank loans - due afier one year

Convertible notes

Senior notes

Deferved tax liabilities

Non-trads amount due to
non-controlling sharcholders
of subsidiaries

‘Tatal non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Bank loans - due within one year

Convertible notes

Trade payables

Other payables

Non-trade amountis due to:
Subsidiary
Ultimate holding company
Directors
Non-controlling sharehofders

of subsidiaries
Incaome tax payable
Total current liabilitics

Total equity and Jiabilities

Note

20

GROUP COMPANY
2013 2012 2013 2012
RME'000  RMEG00  RMB'G00  RMB'000
7,261,726 7,261,726 7261726 7,261,726
10.667.853 9,068,027 {396.000)  __(379,663)
17,920,579 16,329,753 6,915,636 6,882,063
9,928,798 10,353,503 - -
27,858,377  26,683.256 6,015,636 6,582,063
7535512 5,869,463 293,138 319,509
- 331,346 - 331,346
6,185,391 4,327,818 4,209,800 4,327,518
1,363,647 1,160,248 - -
20,060 216,000 . .
15104550 JL904.875 4,502,938  _4,978.673
3,262,391 2,549,816 . 10,260
326,261 - 326,261 -
5,077,788 3,694,139 - -
6,608,820 5,219,929 107,000 111,180
- - 3,249,140 1,430,704
133,741 220,109 133,741 220,109
23,182 32,154 23,382 12,154
153,427 1,081,114 . -
2,800268 2913724 . .
18,476,078  15,710.985 3835533  _1.804.407
61430005 54299116 15258007  13.665.143

See accompanying nates te financiat statements.

11

YANLORD LAND GROUP LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial year ended December 31, 2013

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Cither operating income
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses
Finance cost

Share of profit {loss) of jointly controlied entilies
Profit before income tax
Income tax

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to:
Equity holdeys of the Company

Non-contrelling interests

Earnings per share {cents)
- Basic
- Diluted

See accompanying notes to financial statements,

GROUP
Note 2013 2012

RMB'O0O  RMB'00Q
21 11,280,109 10,301,867
(7278775 {6,547,313)
4,000,334 3,754,554

28 636,528 1,149,627
(13,955)  (161,772)
(561,472)  (411,353)
(3,057) (29,304)
% (208,042)  (158,809)
7] 87,632 (5,950)
3,737,968 4,136,953
30 (1,645.869)  (1,685.187)
31 2,092,000 2,451,766
1,473,753 1,823,498
618.346 628,268
2092009 2.451,768

32

75,63 93.57
74.90 89.59

2
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See accompanying notes to financial stalements,



Total
2,092,099

307,397
2.399.495

26,683,256

618,346

Non-
controlling
interosts
RMB'000
PO 1)}
613.307

10.353,503

Auribuable
to equity
holders of
RMB'0G0
16.329,753
1,473,153

307.435
1,781, E89

Accomulated
0,638,570
1.473.753
3473753

profits the Company

reserve

Other

337,230

4,778

4,778

(Note 21)

cesene

RASE'000  RMB'OGO  RMDB000

Hedging

Merger
deficit

RMI'O0C RMDI'0I0 RMB'0OQ  RMB'000

{1,834,019}

TCSCIVE

Statutory

781,973

Equity

Teserve

181,505

TeLorve

Currency
stansiation

{482,772)

Share

capital

/MB'000
7,261,726

Hate

al year ended December 31, 2013

for the year

Qther compechensive income
Tolal

ey
for the year:
PicfiL for the year

YANLORD LAND GROUP LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENTS OFF CRANGES IN EQUITY (Cout’d)

Balange 2L Jaswary 1, 2013

“foial comprehensive income

Fi
GROUP

g 8 238 € 5

g Sz g3 &

g TE 8 % YANLORD LAND GROUP LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
g &g g8 STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Cont’d)
R ) Financiat year ended December 31, 2013

g9 B8

g g e
i} o Currency
toorovE o '% % Share ranslation  Equity  Accumulated
= Note capilal reserve reserve lasses Total
. RMB’000 RMBG0D RMB'0D0  RMB'00D  RMB000
g gg = COMPANY
v g rEE
= oo I Balance at January 1, 2012 7,261,726  (151,620) 408,041  (435,433) 7,082,704
= Total comprehensive expense
' . . ' |.' : for the year:
ol Loss for the year - - - (416,912 416,912}
Other comprehensive income
& for the year - 313,767 - - 313.767
[ H :‘i ‘Total - 313,767 - {416,912} (103.145)
- Total transaction with owners,
recognised directly in equity:
e Redemplion of convertitie notes - - {97,456) - (97,495)
Transfes on redemption of
vy convertible notes dus 2012 23 - - (1290400 129,040 .
29 g = Tota) - . (226,536)  120.840 (97.495)
I
== Balance a1 December 31, 2012 2,261,728 162,137 I8LS05  (F23.309) 6,882,063
I g Tolai comprehensive expense
for the year:
Profit for the year - - - 666,155 666,155
et Other comprehensive expense
I for ke year - 451,219 - - 451,219}
Total - 45,219 - 666,155 214,936
g Dividends, representing total
G e ke transaction with owners,
recopnised directly in equity 33 - - - (181,363) (181,363
- Belance zt December 31, 2013 LI61.726  (280.08%) 181,505 (238,513} 4013636
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YANLORD LAND GROUP LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Financial year ended Decemmber 31, 2013

Operating activitics
Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Allowance for doubtful debis and bad debus written off
Depreciation expense
Dividend income from available-for-sale investment
Dividend income from held-for-trading investment
Fair value gain on investroznt properties
Fair value gain on held-for-trading investment
Finance cost
Gain on pul option written off
Interest income
Loss on redemption on convertible notes
Net loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net {gain) loss on disposal of investment properties
Net gain on disposal of availabte-for-sale investment
Payable writien off
Waiver of interest expense
Share of {profit} loss of jointly controlled entitics
Operating cash flows before movements in warking capital

Properties for development
Inventories
Completed properties for sale
Preperties under development for sale
Trade #nd other receivables and deposits
Trade and other payzbles

Cash generated from operations

Interest paid
Income tax paid
Net cash (rom operating activities

GROUP
2013 2012
RMB'OO0  RMB000
3,737,968 4,136,953

41 -
35,418 34,994
. {30,157
{209 (213)
(572,058) (664,424)
an (6,619)
208,042 158,809
- {5.187)
(42,062 {37,659}
. 8,198
1il (14,134)
(1,090) 16,437
- (129,946)
. {10,774)
N (27.430)
(87,632 5,990
3,278,457 3,434,838
(3,191,695)  (2,513,647)
(1,152) (26,700)
2,674,828 753,610
(1,650,760 1,380,643
{68.432) (79.915)
2,734,574 1,779,127
3,775,820  4,727.956
(1,129,219} (1,180,576)
(1,556.699)  (1,399.307)
1,080,902 2,148,073

YANLORD LAND GROUP LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

Finapcial year ended December 31, 2013

Investing activities
Acguisition of a subsidiary
Investments in jointly controlled entities
Dividend received from available-for-sale investment
Dividend received from held-for-trading investment
Interest received
Increase in pledged bank deposits
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds on disposal of investment properiies
Proceeds on disposal of available-for-sale invesiment
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Payment for inveshment properties
Advance to an associate
Advance to jointly controlled entities
(Advance toy Repayment from non-controiling

shareholders of subsidiaries
Net cash (used in) from investing activities

Financing activities
Dividerd paid
Dividends paid to non-coniralling
sharcholders of subsidiaries
Ner proceeds on issue of senior notes
Proceeds fromn bank loans
Repayment of bank leans
Redempiion of ceavertible notes
(Repayment Lo} Advance {rom directers
(Repayment o} Advance from ukimate holding company
Repayment to non-controlling sharcholders of subsidiaries
Cash (withdeawal) injection from non-conizolling
shareholders of subsidiaries
Net cash from {used in} financing activities

MNetincrease {decrease)} in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Effect of exchange rale changes on the balance of
cash held in foreign currencies

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

See accomnpanying noles te financial statements,

GROUP
Noe 2013 2012
RMB'OD0 RMB'000
az7 -
(177,131 .
- 30,157
209 213
28,458 28,233
{14,571) (9,980)
9,066 21,413
20,025 80,568
- 179,294
(100,600} {72,878)
(139,127} (87,723)
(136} (89)
(230} -
(42109) 309,187
(515,819} 478,395
33 {181,363) -
(625,823) (50G,922)
1,969,864 -
7,550,165 4,665,188
{5,097,558) (6,576,691)
- {1,635,034)
{7,989) 28,362
(76,901) 219,574
{228,607) ($98,5613
(369,732 825,667
2,932,056 (3,172.413)
3,506,139 (545,945)
19 3,540,577 4,273,644
35,329 {187.122)
19 702045 35340577



YANLORD LAND GROUP LIMITED AND 175 SUBSIDIARIES YANLORD LAND GROUP LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2013

GENERAL

The Company (Registration No. 200601911K) is incorporated in the Republic of Singapore with ils
principal place of business and registered office at 9 Temasek Boulevard, #36-02 Suntec Tower Two,
Singapore 038989, The Company is listed on the Singapore Exchange Secwities Trading Limited. The
financial statements are expressed in Renminbi (“"RMB”™).

The principat activity of the Company is fo carry on the business of an investment holding company and
procurer of funds.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 10 to the financial statements,

The consclidated financil statements of the Group and statement of financial position and stalemsnt of
changes in equity of the Company for the financial year ended December 31, 2013 were authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on March 14, 2014.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING - The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical
cost convention, except as disclosed in the accounting policics below, and are drawn vp in accordance
with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards
("FRS").

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid (o transfer 2 Hability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly chservable or estimated using another valuation fechnique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liabilty, the Group takes into uccount the characieristics of the asset or Tability which market
participants would take into account when pricing the asset or Hability at the measurement date.  Fair
value for measurement and / or disclosure purposes in these consofidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions thal are within the scope of FRS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in FRS 2 or value in use in FRS 36,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICHES (Con'd)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2
or 3 based on the degree 1o whick the inputs 10 the fair value measurements arc observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in i1s entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement daze;

. Level 2 inpuits are inputs, othee than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are ungbservable inpuls for the asset or Hability,

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS - On January 1, 2013, the Group adopted alt
the new and revised FRSs and Inerpretations of FRSs (“INT FRSs™} that are effective from that date
and are relevant fo its operations. The adoption of these new / yevised FRSs and INT FRSs dozs not
result in changes 1o the Group's and the Company’s accounting policies and has no materiat effect on
the amounts reported for the current or prior years, excepi as disclosed below:

Amendmients to FRS ! Presentation of ftems of Othrer Comprehensive litcome

The Group has applied the amendments to PRS 1 Presentarion of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income
retrospectively for the first time in the current year. Under the amendments to FRS 1, the Group
grouped items of other comprehensive income under “jlems that may be reclassified subsequently (o
profit or toss™ in the other comprehensive income section. Other than the above mentioned presentation
changes, the application of the amendments te FRS [ does not result in any impact on profit or loss,
other comprehensive income and total comprehensive incante.

Amendments to FRS 107 Disclosures - Offsefting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The Group has applied the amendments o FRS 107 Disclosures — Qffsetting Fincncial Assets and
Financial Liabilities for the first time in the current year. The amendments o FRS 107 require entities
to disclose information about rights of offset and related arrangements (such as collateral posting
requisements) for finarcial instruments under an enforceable masier nstiing agreement or similar
arrangernent,

The amendments have been applied retrospectively, The Group has presented the effects of its
offsciting arrangements in Note 4(b) to the financial statements. Aside from the additional disclosures,
the application of e amendments has had no material impact on the amounts recognised in Lhe
consolidated financial statements,
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YANLORD LAND GROUP LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FRS 113 Fair Value Measurement

‘The Group has applied FRS 113 for the first time in the current year, FRS 113 establishes 2 single
soures of guidance for fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. The fair
value measurement requirements of FRS 153 apply to both financial instrument items and non-financial
agsets for which other FRSs require or permit fair vajue measurcments and disclosures about fair value
measurements, except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of FRS 17 Leases, and
measurements that have some simnilarities 1o fair value but are not fair value (2.g. net realisable value for
the purposes of measuring inventories or value in use for impaimment assessment purposes).

FRS 113 includes extensive disclosure reguirements, although specific transitional provisions were given
to entities such that they need not apply the disclosure requirements set out in the Standard in
comparative informmtion provided for periods before the initial application of the Standard.
Conszquently the Group has not made any new disclosures required by FRS 113 for the comparative
period.

Other than the additfonal disclosures, the application of FRS 113 has not had any materiat impact en the
amounts recognised in the consolidated {inancial stateinents.

Al the date of suihotisation of these financial statements, the [oflowing new / revised FR3s, and
amendments 10 FRS are relevant Lo the Group and the Company were issued but not effective:

. FRS 27 (Revised) Separare Financial Statements

. FRS 28 (Revised) mvestnents in Associales and Joint Ventures

- FRS 110 Consolidared Financial Statements

. FRS 111 Joint Arrangements

. ERS 112 Disclosure of Interesis in Other Entities

. FRS 110, FRS 111, FRS 112 Trausiion Guidance

. Amendments to FRS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation

. Amendments to FRS 36 Juipairment of Asseis

» Amendments to FRS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

Consequential amendmenis were also made to various standards as a tesult of these new / revised
standards.

2

YANLORD LAND GROUP LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Decemler 31, 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

The management anticipates that the adoption of the above FRSs and amendments {0 FRS in fusure
periods will ot have & material impact on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company
in the pericd of their initial adoption except for the following:

FRS 111 Joint Arrangemends and FRS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

FRS 111 supersedes FRS 31 Iiterests in Joint Ventures and INT ERS 13 Jointly Controlled Entities -
Nov-Monetary Consribusions by Venturers.

FRS 111 classifies a joint arrangement as either a joint operation or a joint venture based on the
parties’ riglts and obligations under the arrangement, The existence of a separate [egal vehicle is no
longer the koy factor. A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint
control have riglts lo the assels and cbligations for the liabilities. A joint venture is a joint
arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control have rights to the net assats.

The joint venturer should use the equity method under the revised FRS 28 Invesmientss in Associates
and Jolt Ventures to account for a joint venture. The option 10 use proportionate consolidation
method has been removed,  For joint oparations, the Group directly recognises its rights to the assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses of (he investee in accordance with applicable FRSs.

FRS 11§ will take effect from financial years bepinning on or after Janwary [, 2014, with full
retrospective application subject 1o transitional provisions.

When the Group adepts FRS 111, 4 jointly controlled entity may be classified as a joint operation or a
joint venture, depending on the rights and obligations of the parties to the joint arrangement. For
arrangements that are joint ventures and were previously proportionately coasolidated as jointly
controlied entities, the Group will have to adopt equity accounting.

The Group is currently estimating the effects of FRS 111 on its joint arrangements in the peciod of
initial adoption,

RS 112 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

FRS 112 requires an entily to provide more extensive disclosures regarding the nature of and risks
associated with ils interest in subsidiarics, associates, joint arrangements and unconsolidated
structured entities.

FRS 112 will take effect from financial years beginning on or after January 1, 2014, and the Group

expacts expanded disclosures relating to its interests in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements
upon adeption of FRS F2.
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YANLORD LAND GROUP LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES YANLORD LAND GROUP LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Amendments to FRS 32 Financial Instruntents: Presentation

The amendmenis to FRS 32 clarify existing application issues relating to the offsetting requirements.
Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legal enforceable right of set-off’
and ‘simultaneous reakisation and secflement’.

The amendments to FRS 32 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January [, 2014,
with retrospective application required.

The management is still evaluating the impact of the zmendmenss to FRS 32 on the financial assets
and liabilities that have been set-off on the statement of financial position.

Amendwents to FRS 36 Impairment of Assets

The smendments 1o FRS 36 restrict the requirement to disclose the recoverable amount of an assel or
cash generating unit (CGU) to periods in which an impairment loss has been recognised or reversed.
The amendmenis also expand and clarify the disclosure requirements applicable when such asset or
CGl’s recoverable amount has been determined on the basis of fair value less costs of disposal, such
as the Jevel of ‘fair value hierarclty’ within which the fair value measurement of the asses or CGU has
been determined, and where the fair value measurements are o Level 2 or 3 of the fair value
hierarchy, a description of the valuation techniques used and any changes in that valuation technique,
key assumptions used including discount rates used.

Ugan adoptien of the amendments to FRS 36, the Group expects additional disclosures arising {rom
any asssl impainment toss or reversals, and where their respective recoverable amounts are
determined based on fair value less costs of disposal.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION - The consolidated financisl statememts incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Caatrol s
achieved where the Company has the power to govem the financiak and operating policies of an entity so
as 1o oblain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income [rom the effective date of acquisition and up 1a the effective dawe of
disposal, as appropriate.

All intra-group transaclions, balances, incomc and expenses are eliminaied in full on consolidation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Non-controtling iterests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s equity therein. The
interest of non-controbling shareholders that are present ownership interests and entitte their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s ret assets in the event of liguidation may be initially measured (at date
of original business cambination) either at fair value or at the non-controliing interesis’ preportionaic
share of the fair value of the acquirez’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measuremnent basis is made
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, Other ypes of non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another FRS.  Subsequent to acquisition, the
carrying amount of non-conlrolling interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus
the non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to non-controlling intcrests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When (he Group loges contred of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i} the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and {ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any ron-controfling interests. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for {i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred dircotly to accumulated profis) in the same manner as would be required if the relevant
assels or labilities were disposed of. The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under FRS 39 Financial instnunents: Recognition and Measurement or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or jointly controlled entity,

In the Company's financial stalements, invesuments in subsidiaries are carrisd at cost less any
impairment in net recoverable value that has been recognised in profiz or loss.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS - The acquisition of subsidiaries from a common controlling
sharchalder is accounted for using the merger accounting method, Under this method, the Company
has been treated as the holding company of the subsidiaries for the financial years presented wather
thar from the date of acquisition of the subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL SFTATEMENTS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Decemtber 31, 2013 December 31, 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

The acquisition of subsidiarics from a party olher than a common controtling sl:areholder is accounted
for using the acquisition method, The consideration for each acguisition is measured at the aggragate
of the acquisition dale fair values of assets given, lizbilities incurred by the Growp to the former
owners of (he acquirce, and equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquirce. Acquisition-related costs are recogrised in profit or loss as incurred,

Where applicable, the consideration for the acquisition includss any asset or liability resulting from a
conlingent consideration arrangement, measured at its acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent changes
in such fair values are adjusted against the cost of acquisition where they qualify as measurement
period adjustments (see below). The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments depends on how the
contingent consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity i5 not
remeasured ai subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent seitlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a Hability is remeasured at subsequen:
reporting dates in accordance willi FRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, or
FRS 37 Provisions, Coumtingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

Where a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's previously held interests in the
acquired entity are remeasured 1o fair value at the acquisition date {i.e. the date the Group attains
control) and the resulling gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or less. Atmounts arising from
inlerests in e acquirce prior 10 the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprekensive income are reclassified 10 profit or loss, where such weatment would be appropriate if
that interest were disposed of.

The acquiree’s identifiable assets, iiabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for
recognition under the FRS are recognised at their fair vatue at the acquisition date, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related 10 employee benefis arrangements
are recognised and measured int accordance with FRS 12 Income Taxes and FRS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

. liabilities or equity instrumcnis relazed 0 share-based payment fransactions of the acquires or
ihe replacement of an acquirce’s share-based payment awards transactions with share-based
paymenl awards transactions of the acquirer in accordance with the method in FRS 102 Share-
based Payment &t the acquisition date; and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with FRS 105 Nox-

current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that
Standard.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional ameunts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisionzl amounts are adjusted during the measurement pariod
{sec below), or additional asscts or liabilities are recognised, to refiect new ieformation obiained
about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition dawe that, if known, would have
affected the amounts recognised as of that date,

The measurement period is the period from she date of acquisition to the date the Group obtains
complete information about fxcts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date and is
subiject to a maximum of one year from acquisition date.

The accounting pelicy for initial measurement of non-controlling interests is described above,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Financial assets and financial lizbilities are recognised on the Group's
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is @ methed of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument
and of allocating interesl income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimaled future cash receipts or payments (including all fees on points paid
or seccived that form an integral part of the effective inerest rate, transaction cosis and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a
shorter period. Incoree and expense arc recognised on an effective interest rate basis for debt
instruments other than those financial instruments “at fair value through profit or loss™.

Fintancial assets

All financial assets are recognised and de-recognised on a trade date where the purchase or sale of an
investiment is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs
except for those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss which are initially
measured at fair vaiue.
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YANLORD LAND GROUP LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd}
Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories; “financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss” and “loans and receivables”. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of financial assets and is determined at the time of inifial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are classified as at BVTPL where the financial asset is either held-for-rading or it is
designated as at FVTPL,

A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if:
. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future; or

- it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is & derivative (hat is not designated and effective a5 a hedging instrument,

FVTPL are staled at fair valve, with any resulant gain or loss recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or joss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset. Fair value is determined in the manner described in Note 4{(c) {vi).

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that ate not
quoted in an sctive market are classified as “loans and receivables”. Loans and receivables are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interess method less impairment. Interest is recognised
by applying the effective interest method, except for short-term receivables when the effect of
discounting is immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where there is abjective
evidence thai, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initiaf recogrition of the
financial asset, the estimated Future cash flows of the investment have been impacted.

YANLORD LAND GROUP LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TG FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICLES (Cont'd)
Gbjective evidence of impairment could include:

. Significant {inancial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
. Default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

. It becoming probable that he borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation,

For certain categories of financial assels, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not 10 be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a postfolio of receivables could include the Group's past experience of
collecting payments, an increase i the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
ceedit period, as well as observable changes in nrational or local economic conditions that correlale
with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairmen is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

For financial assets that are carricd at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between (he assel's carrying amount and the present value of the estimated fotwre cash
flows discounted a1 the current market rae of rern for a similar {inancial asset.  Such impairment
Toss will not be reversed in subsequent pericds.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impalement loss directly for all financial
assels with ihe exception of trade and other reesivables where the carrying wnount is cedused through
the use of an allowance account, When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the
aflowance account. Stbsequent recoveries of amouts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the altowance account are recognised in profit
or loss.

For financial assets measured al amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment foss decreases and the decrease can be related abjectively 1o an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the previously recopnised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent tat the carrying amount of the financial asset at the date the impaizment is
reversed doss not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recagnised,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Deeember 31, 2013

December 31, 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd}

Derecognition of financiat assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
assel expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. 1f the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and conlinues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the assel and an associated lability for amaunts it may have to pay. I the Group retains
substantizlly all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred (inancial asset, the Group
conlinues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collaterialised borrowing for the
proceeds received,

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debrt or eguity

Financial liabilitics and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified according to the
substance of the tonlracival arrangements entesed into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument,

Equily instruments

An eguity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of ils liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Financizl liabilitics

Trade and other payables are initiafly measured at fair value, net of transaction cests, and are
subsequently measured at amortiscd cosl, using the effective interest method, with interest expense
recognised on an effective yieid basis.

Tnterest-bearing bank loans and senior notes are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently
measurcd at amortised cost, using the effective interest method. Any difference between the proceeds
(net of transactios costs) and the settlement or redzmption of borrowings is recognised over the term
of the borrowings in accordance with the Gyoup's accounting policy for borrowing costs (sec below).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Derecopnition of financial Yabilities

The Group derccognises financial liabilities when, and only when, e Group's ebligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire.

Convertible notes

Convertidle notes are regarded as compound instruments, consisting of a liability component and an
equity component. The components of compound instruments are classified szparately as financial
liabitities and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. At the date of
issue, the fair value of tie liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for a
similar non-copvertible instrument. This amount is recorded as a liability on an ameortised cost hasis
until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date. The equity component is
determined by deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair value of the compound
instrurnent s a whole. This is recognised and included in equity reserve, net of income tax effects, ard
is not subsequently remeasured.

The cquity component, representing the option to convert fl:e liability component into ordinary shares of
the Company, will remain in equity reserve uniil the embedded option is exercised in which case (he
balance siated in equity reserve wiil be transferred to share capital, When the conversion option
remains unexercised at the expiry date or the maturity date of the convertible notes, the balance
recognised in equity will be qansferred to accumulated profits. No gain or loss is racognised in profit
oF toss upon conversion or expiry of the option.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group cnters into derivative financial instruments 10 manage its exposure o foreign exchange rate
risk. Further details of derivative financial instruments are disclosed in Note 16 to the financial
statemsnls.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured {o their fair value at the end of cach reporting period. The resulting gain or
toss is recognised in profit or loss immedtalely unless the derivalive is designated and effective a5 a
hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recopgnition in profit or lass depends on the nature
of the hedge relationship. The Group desigmates ceriain derivatives as hedges of forcign currency risk
of firm commitments (¢ash ffow hedges).

A derivative is presented as a non-current asset or a non-current Hability if the remaining maturity of the
instrament is moee thai 12 months and il is not expacted to be realised or settled within 12 monihs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate
derivatives when their risks and characleristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and
the host contracts are not measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

An embedded derivative is presented as a non-current asset or a non-corrent liability if the remaining
maturity of the hybrid instrument to which the embedded derivative relates is more than 12 months
and it is not expecied to be realised or settled within 12 months, Other embedded derivatives are
presented as current assels or curtent liabilities.

Hedge accounting

The Group designates cerlain hedging instruments of derivatives as cash flow hedges. Hedges of forcign
exchange risk on finn commitments are accounted for as cash Aow hedges.

Al the inception of the hedge relationship the entity documents the relationship between the hedging
instrument and hedged item, along with its risk management cbjectives and its strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. Fuethermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an engoing basis, the
Group documents whether the hedging instrument that is used in a hedging relationship is highly
effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item,

Note 16 contain details of the fair values of the derivative instruments used for hedging purposes.
Movements in the hedging reserve in other comprehensive income are also detailed in Note 21.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in fair value of derivatives that are designed and qualify as cash flow
hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss as part of other gain and losses.

Amovnts recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are reclassified o
profil or loss in the periods when the hedged item is recognised in profit or loss in the same line of
the conselidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of comprehensive income as the
recognised hedged item. However, when the forecast transaclion that is hedged results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, the gains and losses previously
accumulated in equity are transferred from equity and inchuded in the initial measurement of the cost
of the asset or lizbility,
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging
instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no fonger qualifies for hedge accounting.
Any gain or loss accurnulated in equily at that time remains in equity and when the forecast
transaction is ultimately recognised in profit or foss, such gains and losses are recognised in profit or
toss, o7 transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the asset or
fiability as described above. When a forecasl transaction is no longer expected fo occur, the
cumulative gain or loss that was accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

LEASES - Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the [essee,  All other leases are classified as
opzrating leases,

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operaling leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease unless another syslematic basis is more representative of the lime patlern in which vse
benefit derived from the leased asset is diminished. Initial direet costs incurred in negotiating and
arrenging an operating lease are rccognised on @ straight-ing basis over the lease term on the same
basis as the leased income.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged 10 profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease unless another systemaatic basis is more representative of the time patiern in which
economic benefits from the feased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operaling leases
are recognised as an expense in the peried in which they are incurred.

PROPERTIES FOR DEVELOPMENT - Properties for development are maindy vacant leaschold land
for future development in respect of which physical construction is not expected 10 commence within
twelve months from the end of the reporting period. They are stated at cost Jess allowance for any
impairment in value.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE - Properiies under development for sale are
stated at lower of cost or estimated net realisable value. Net realisable value takes into account the price
ultimately expected 1o be realised and the anticipated costs to completion. Cost of properyy under
development comprises Jand cost, development costs and berrowing costs capitalised during the
developinent pericd.  When completed, the unils held for sale are classificd as complcted properties for
sale.

Properties under development for sale include properties In respect of which concrete planning and
preparatery activiies have been approved by management and have commenced, and physical
construction is expecled to commence within twelve months {rom the end of the reposting peried.

COMPLETED PROPERTIES FOR SALE - Completed propertics for sale are stated at lower of cost or
net realisable value, Cost is determined by apportionment of the total land cost, development cosls and
capitalised borrowing costs based on floor arca of the unsold properties, Net realisable value is
determined by reference to sale proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course of business less alt
estimated sefling expenses; or is estimated by management in the absence of comparable transactions
after taking into consideration prevailing market conditions.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - Property, plant and cquipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Construction-in-pregress consists of construction costs and borrowing costs incurred during the period
of construction.

Depreciation is charged so as 10 write off the cost of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction-in-progress, over their estimaled wseful lives, using the straight-line method on the
following bases:

Leasehald land and buildings - 2% o 5%
Motor vehicles . 10% to 25%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment - 205

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at each year end, with
the effect of any changes in estirnate accounted for on a prospective basis,

Fully depreciated propesty, plant and equipment siill in use are retained in the financial statcments.
The gain or loss arising on the disposal or refireinent of a property, plant and equipment is determined

as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - Investment properties are properties held to carn rental income and /
or for capital appreciation and properties under construction for suck purposes. They are measured
initiaily at cost, including transaction costs and subsequent to injtial recognition, measured at fair value.
Professional valualions are gbtained at least once cvery year. Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value of investment property are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise,
Where there is an inability to determice fair value refiably when comparable market transactions are
infrequent and alternative reliable estimates of fair value are not available, the investment property s
measured at cost,

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future cconomic benefits are expected from the disposal.  Any gain or loss
arising on derecagnition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asser) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised,

GOODWILL - Goodwill arising in a business combination is recognised as an asset at the date that
control is acquired (the acquisition date}, Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest (if any) in the enlily over the net amounis of the
identifiable assels acquired and the liabilities assumed at the acquisition date.

1f, aficr reassessment, the Group's interest in the fair value of the acquiree's identifiable nst assets
exceeds the sum of the consideration wansferced, the amount of any non-controlling imerest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held coquity interest ia (he acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immedialely in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Goodwilt is not amortised bur is reviewed for impairent at least anwually. For the purpase of
impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units expecied to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indicmion thar the
unit may be impaired. IF the recoverzble amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill alocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of cach
asset in the wnit. An impairmens loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

On disposal of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity, the atiributable amount of goodwili is
included in the determination of the profil or loss on disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

INTANGIBLE ASSET - This relates to a club membership held on a long-term basis and is stated at
cost less any impairment loss.

IMPAIRMENT OF TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS EXCLUDING GOODWILL - At the
end of cach reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets other than investment properties carried at fair value, to determine whather there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss, 1f any such indication exists, he recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not
possible 1o estimaie the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset betongs.

Recoverable amount s the higher of fair value less costs fo sell and value in use. In assessing value
in vse, the estimated future cash flows are discounied to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that refiects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
assel,

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-gencrating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced 1o its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised imuediately in profit or loss.

Where an Bnpairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-gencrating
snit} is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount docs not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the assel (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

ASSOCIATES - An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is
neithee a subsidiary nor an inierest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power 1o participate
inn the financial and operaling policy decisions of the investee but is not conirol or joint control over
those policies.

The resulis and assets and liobifities of associates are incarporated in these financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition ¢hanges in the
Group's share of the nct assets of the associate, less any impairment jn the value of individual
invesiments. Losses of an associale in excess of the Group’s imterest in that associate are not
recognised.
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% SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabiiities of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is
recognised as goodwill, The goodwil] is included within the carrying amount of the invesument and is
assessed for impairment as part of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and comtingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, afler
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where a Group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are eliminaied to the
extent of the Group's Interest in the relevant associate.

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES - A joiutly controlied entity is a contractual
arrangement whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic activity that is subject Lo
joint contsol, that is when the stracgic financial and operating policy decisions relating o the
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

Joiut venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a separate entity in which each venturer
has an intwcrest are referred (o as jointly contrelled entities, The results, assets and labilities of the
jointly controHed entities are incorporated in these financial statements using the equity methed of
accounting. Under the cquity methad, investments in the jointly controlled entities are carried in the
cansolidated statement of financiat position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in (he
Group’s share of the net assets of the jointly controiled entities, less any impairment in the value of
individual investments.

Where the Group transucts with its jointly controlled entities, unrealised profits and losses are
eliminated to the extens of the Group’s interast in the jointly controlled entities.

PROVISIONS - Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligaticn (legal or
constructive} as a result of a past evenl, it is probable that the Group will be required to setle the
obligation, and a reliable estimale can be made of the amount of the obligation,

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required fo setile the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking ito account the risks and uncertainlies
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present abligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to seltle a provision arg expected 10 he recovered

from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an assel if it is virtually certain that reimbursement
will be received and the amount of she receivable can be measured rejiably,
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd}

MERGER DEFICIT - Merger deficit arises from combination of entities under common control
accounted for using merger accounting method (see “Business Combinations™). The merger reserve
represents the difference between he aggregate nominal amounis of the share capital of the
subsidiaries at the date on which they were acquired by the Group and the nominal amount of the
share capital issued by the Company as consideration for the acquisition.

STATUTORY RESERVE - Statutory reserve represents the amount transferred from profit after tax
of the subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC (excluding Hong Keng) in accordance with the PRC
requicement.  The statutory reserve cannot be reduced except where approval is obtained from the
relevant PRC authority o apply the amount towards setting off any accuenulated losses or increasing
capital.

OTHER RESERVE - The negative balance in other reserve represents the net excess of purchase
cousideration over the carrying amount of non-controlling interests acquired iix the subsidiaries at the
daic of acquisition.

REVENUE RECOGNITION - Reveaue is mecasured at the fair vatue of the consideration received or
receivable,

Sale of propertics developed

Revenue from properiies developed for sale is recognised when the fegal title passes 1o the buyer oy
when the equitable interest in the property vesis in the buyer upon release of the handover natice of
the respective property to the buyer, whichever is the eaclier. Payments received from buyers prior to
this stage are recorded as advances frem buyers for sates of propertics and are classified as current
liabitities.

Rendering of services

Management fee income and service incame are recognised over the period when services are
rendered.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOQUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal owtstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable.

Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shaveholders’ rights 10 receive payment
have been established.

Rental income

Rental income from nvestment properties is recognised on a steaight-fine basis over the term of the
relevant Jease.

GOYERNMENT SUBSIDIES ~ Government subsidies are not recognised until there is reascnable
assurance that the Company will comply with 1he conditions attaching to them and the subsidies will
be received. Government subsidics are recogniscd as income over the periods necessary (o maich
them with the related costs, Government subsidies related to expense items are recognised in the
same period as those expenses are charged to the profit or loss and are reported separately as "other
operating income™.

BORROWING COSTS - Borrowing costs disectly attributable ¢o the aequisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial pericd of time (o
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added {o the cost of these assets, until such time as the
assels are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income eamed on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expendilure on qualifying assels is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible fer capitalisation.

Al other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

RETIREMENT BENEEIT COSTS - Payments to defined contvibution retirement benefit plans are
charged s an expense when emplayees have rendered the services entitling them to (e contributions.
Payments made o stale-managed tefirement benefit schemes, such as the Singapore Cenral Provident
Fund, are dealt with as payments to defined contribution plans where the Group's obligations under
the plans are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan.

Pursuant 1o the relevant regulations of the PRC govermmeni, the PRC subsidiaries of the Group
{“PRC Subsidiaries™) have parlicipated in central pension schemes (“the Schemes”) operated by local
municipal governments whereby the PRC Subsidiaries are required to contribute a cerfain percentage
of the basic salaries of their employees to the Schemes to fund (heir retirement benefits. The local
municipal governments underlake to assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and
future retired employees of the PRC Subsidiaries. The only obligation of the PRC Subsidizries with
respect 1o the Schemes is 1o pay the ongoing required contributions under the Schemes mentioned
above. Comtributions under the Schemes are charged as expense when incurred.

EMPLOYEE LEAVE ENTITLEMENT - Employee entitlernents 10 anuual Jeave are recoghised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated Liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employecs up to the end of the reporting period,

INCOME TAX - Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based an {axable profis for the year, Taxable profil differs from profit as
teported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss because it excludes items of incomz or expense
that are 1axable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are not taxable or tax
deductible, The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates {and tax laws) that have
been enacied or substantively enacted in countrics where the Company and subsidiaries operate by the
end of the reporting peried.

Deferred tax is recopnised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and labilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding 1ax bases used in the compatation of axable profit, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet Hability methed. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred fax assels are recognised to the exient
that it is probable that 1axable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences
can be wtilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a busincss combination) of other assets and
fiabilities in a transaction that affects neither the laxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Deferred tax liabililies are recognised for taxable lemporary differences arising on investments i
subsidiarics and associates, and interests in jointly controlled entities, except where the Group is able
to contrel the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foresceable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced 1o the extent that it is no tonger probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is caleulated at 1ax rates that are expected [0 apply in the pericd when the liability is
seitled or the asset realised based on the 1ax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or
subslantively enacled by he end of the reporting period. Except for investment properties measured
using the fair value modsi, the measurement of deferred tax labilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recaver or seitle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilitics and deferred tax assets for invesiment properties
that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to
be recovered through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutied when the
invesument property is depreciable and is held within a business model of the Group whose business
abjective is 1o consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. The Group has rebutted the presumplion that the carrying
amoun: of the investment properties will be recovered entirely through sale.

Defersed tax assels and liabilitics arc effset when there js a Jegally enforceable right to set off current
tax assels against current (ax liabilities and when they relate to incomne faxes levied by the same
taxation awthority and the Group intends to settle its current fax assets and labilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in profit or loss, except when they
relate to items credited or debited outside profit or loss {either in other comprehensive income or
direclly in equity), in which case the lax is also secognised outside profit or foss (either in ather
comprehensive income or directly in equity), or where they arise from the initial accounting for a
business combination. In the case of a business combination, the tax effect is taken into account in
calculating goodwill or determining the excess of the acquirer's interest in the nst fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, labilities and contingent liabilities over cost.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS AND TRANSLATION - The individual financial
statements of each Group entity are measured and presented in the currency of the primary ecanomic
environment in which the entity operates (its functional currency). The presentation currency for the
consolidated financial slatements of the Group and the statement of financial position of the Company
is RMB.

In preparing the financial statements of the individuai entities, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the
transaction. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Nen-monetary items
carried al fair value that are denominated in forcign currencies are reiranslated at she rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated,

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on retransiation of monetary
items are included in profit or loss for the pericd. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items carcied at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary iterns in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income. For such non-monedary items, any exchange component
of that gain or foss is also recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

Exchange differences an foreign curzency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to
interess costs on those [oreign currency borrowings.

Exchanpe differences on transaclions cnlered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks are
deseribed in the hedge accounting policies above.

For the purpose of presenting consolidaled financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the entilies
in the Group which do not have RMB as the functicnal currency (including comparatives) are
expressed in RMB using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting peried. Income and
expense ilems (including comparatives) are translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates at
the dates of the lransactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as other
comprehensive income and transferred 1o the Group’s currency translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of an operation arc ieated as assels and
tiabilities of 1hat operation and translated at the closing rate,
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES (Coat'd)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS - Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash flows comprise cash on
band and demand deposits and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in vatue.

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in Nole 2 above,
management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the catrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources, The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on bistorical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actuzl results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewsd on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only thal
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Critical judgentents in applying the Group’s accomling policies

The following are the eritical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below), that
management has made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have the
mast sigrificant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statemeznts.

‘Taxation

Thie Group accounts for income taxes under the provisions of FRS 12 Income Taxes. The Group has
recorded deferred tax assets on ax Joss of RMBS2G million (2012 : RMB254 million) because the
management believes it is more likely than nat hat such 1ax [oss can be utilised (Note 15). Should
future taxable profits not be sufficient to utilise the tax losses, an adjusiment to the Group's deferred
tax assels would decrease the Group's income in the period where such determination is made.
Likewise, if the management deterimines that the Group is able 1o utilise all or part of the Group's tax
loss of RMB460 million (2012 ; RMB335 million), which is currently not expected to be uiilised in
the future, it would result jn future recognition of additional deferred tax assets and increase the
Group's income after tax in the period where such determination is made. The Group recoids
deferred tax wsing the balance sheet liability method at the rates that have been enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Cont'd}

Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT™)

Income from sale of properties in the PRC is subject to LAT at progressive rates uader the PRC tax
laws and regulations. The mamagement estimates and provides for LAT in accordance with the PRC
1ax laws and regulations. However, prior to October 1, 2006, the Group has not been levied any
LAT for the sale of properties focated in Shanghai Pudong New District.

The management, after taking inte consideration its due diligence procedures, as described in
Note 30, considers the provision of LAT 1o be adequate.

Classification of propertics for development and propeities under development for sate

The classification of properties for development and properties under development for sale is
dependent on the management's judgement, taking into consideration the actual and projected
development schedule of the property development projects. As at December 31, 2013, the carrying
amounts of properties for development and properties under development for sale are RMB9.960
billion (2012 : RMB16.079 billion) and RMB28.641 billion {2012 : RMB20.284 billion) respzctively.
Management considers the classification beiween properties for development and propertics under
development for sale to be apprapriate afler 1aking into consideration the development staws of the
project as well as the viability of the planned development schedule.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sousces of estimation uncertainty at the end

of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment 1o the carrying
amounts of assets and lisbilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Carrying amounts of propartics for development, completed properiies for sale aid properties under
development for sale

The aggregate carrying amount of these properties tolalled RMB42,926 billion as at December 31, 2013
{2012 : RMB40.972 biflion), details of which arc disclosed in Note 9. They are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment in value or at the lower of cost and estimated net realisable values, assessed
on an individual project basis.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KLY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Cont'd}

VWhen it is probable that the total project costs wilt exceed the tolal projected revenue net of selling
expenses, i.e. net realisable vajue, the amount in excess of net realisable value is recognised as an
expense immediately.

The process of evaluating the nel realisable value for each property is subject to management's
judgement and the effect of assumptions in respect of development plans, timing of sale and the
prevailing market conditions. Management performs cost studies for each project, taking into account
the costs incurred to date, the development status and casts to complate each dovelopment project. Any
future vaiation in plans, assumptions and estimales can potentially impact the carrying amounts of the
respective properties.

Valuation of investment propertics

As disclosed in Note 8, investment propertics are stated at fair value based on the valvation performed
by an independent professional valuer. In detczmining the {air values, the valuer has made reference 1o
both the comparable sales transactions as avsilable in the relevant market of these propertics and the
capitalisation of the existing and reversionary sental income potentiat,

The estimated value from capitatisation of the existing and reversionary rentaf income potential is
used as an estimate of fair value, and ihe cstimale is dependent on several variable parameters and
projections including projected remtal income, occupancy, remtal yield, discount rate and terminal
yield.

Any change in the variable parameters and projections will result in change in fair value estimate for
the investment propertics which can potentially be significant,

In relying on the independent professional valuation repor, management considered the method of
valoation and the Group's markeling strategy snd is of the view that the estimated values are reasonable.
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(a)

Categories of financial instruments
The following table sets out the financial instrumsnts as at the end of the reporting period:

GROUP COMPANY
2013 2012 2013 2012
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB™000 MB'C00
Financial assets

Fair value through profit
or joss:
Held-for-irading
investment 11,056 311 - -
Derivartive financial insinuments:
En designated hedge
accounting relationships 20,402 - - -
Loans ardd receivables
(including cash and

cash equivalents) 1833872 4,057,757 12,792,560 1104040}

Financial linbilities

Amortised cost 23,250,314 18,784,452 _8,342.47) _6,783.080
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS
AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

(b} Financial instrnivments subject fo offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements

and similar agreements

Financial assefs

Type of
financial asset

GROUP
2013
Non-rade amouits
due from ren-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries
2012
Non-trade amounts

due from non-controtling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Gross
amounts of
recognised

financial
as5015
RMB'000

1,023,946

RSt

B2L443

46

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial liahilities
set off in the
statement of

Met amounts
of financial
assels
presented in
the stalement
of financial

financial position nosition
RMB'000 RMB'000
{489,199 534,747
(420,019 231,424
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS
AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd}

Financial linbilities

Net amounts
Gross amounts of financial
Gross of recagnised liabilities
amounts of financial assets presented in
recognised set off in the the statement
Type of financial statement of of financial
financial diabikity liabilities financial position position
RMB'000 RMB'C00 RMB'000
GROUP
2013
Non-trade amounts
due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiarics 662,626 {489,109) 173,427
2012
Non-trade armounts
due 1o non-controlling
sharcholders of subsidiarics 1,787,133 490,019) 1,267,114

In reconciling the ‘Net amounis of financial assets and financial fiabilities presented in the
statement of financial position® to the line item amoums presented in the statement of financial
position, the above amounts represent ondy those which are subject to offsetting, enforceable

master nelting arrangemenis and similar agreements.

The Grousp doss not have any related amounts subject to enforceable master netting
aerangements and similar arrangements which have not been set off in the statemens of financiat

position.

The Company does not have any financial instruments which are subject to offselling,

enforceable master netting arrangements or similar netting agreements,
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RESKS
AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Coni’d)

{c) Financial risk manegement policies and objectives

The management of the Group monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the
operations of the Group lo cnsure appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and
effective manner. These risks include market risk {foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk,
equity price rigk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group uses derivative financial instruments 1o manage its exposure to foreign currency
risk relating to its foreign cutrency denoruinated senior notes.

Fhe Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes,

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to these financial risks or the manner in
which it manages and measures the risks. Market risk exposures are measured using sensitivity
analysis indicated below,

(i) Forcign exchange risk maragement

The Group entess into transactions in various foreign currencies, including the
United States (“US") dollar, Hong Kong ("HK™) dollar, Singapore ("SG") dollar and
Repminbi (“RMB™) and therefore is exposed to foreign exchange risk.

At the ead of the reperting period, the carrying amounts of monetary assets and mongtary
liahilities denominated in currencies other than the respective entities’ functional
currencies are as foliows:

GROUP COMPANY
Liabilities Assets Liabilities Asszis
2013 2012 013 o2 203 IR T [TV
RMB'000 RMBOOC  RMB'O00 RME'OO0 RME'000  RMBOOG RMBU00 RMBUR
Lis dollars 6,425,705 5250435 681837 142628 50:02 5,012,247 114 139
HK dollars 979,95¢ 1,238,819 49,158 187,417 35,647 213,943 3% 37
$Gdolars 12,597,403 11,297,200 725480  VI84S7 . -

RMB ENLIN] LEEMS 21905 LNMSm . 52 T

Furiher details on the decivative financial instruments are found in Note 16 to the financial
statements,
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YANLORD LAND GROUP LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Decewnber 31, 2013

4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISK
AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Foreign currency sensitivity

The foliowing table details the sensitivity to a 3% icrease in the exchange rate of the
functional currency of each entity of ihe Group against the relevam foreign currencies.
3% is the sensitivity rate used by key management persennel in assessing foreign
currency risk and represents management’s assessment of the possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only onistanding foreign curvency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 3%
change in foreign currency rates, The sensitivity analysis includes external loans, cash
and cash equivalents, held-for-trading investment, as well as intercompany loans within
the Group where they gave rise to an impact on the Group’s profit or loss and / or other
equity. A positive number below indicates an increase in profil before income tax and
other equity when the Functional currency of each Group enlity strengthens by 3%
against the relevant foreign currencies.

For a 3% weakening of ihe functional currency of cach Group entity against the
relevant foreign currencies, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit
before income tax and other equily.

US dotlsr impact HK tollar impest 3G dollar imnact RMB impact
3 2042 2013 042 013 2082 2013 2012
RME000 RMI'O00 RMB'000 RMIO00 RMEG0 RMB'0O00 RMBDO0 RMBDO
GROU?
Increase (Decrease)
in prafiL belore
income tax ™ 125,93 134,036 27,252 30,623 5845 7285 (5.093) ]
Increase (Decrease)
in ather cquity AW 1 MO e, LED HOIM LG8 @
COMPANY

Increase (Decrease}
in peofit befere
income tax 16206 JAAO5T LB 8882 _ o .. R pe]

B Excludes the foreign currency impaci on RMB denominated senior notes due in
2016 as a result of the effects of adopting hedge accounting.
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(i)

The Group's seusitivity to US dollar exchange rate has increased during the curreni year
due to the increase in US dollar denominated net labilities at the current year end as
compared with the preceding year end. The Group's sensitivity o HE dollar exchange
tate has decreased during the current year due o ihe decrease in HK dollar denominated
non-trade amowd due to the ultimate holding company at the current year end as
compared with the preceding year end. The Group's sensitivity to SG dollar exchanpge
rale has increased during the current year due 10 the increase in SG dollar denominated
net liabitities at the current year end as compared with the preceding year end, The
Group's sensitivity to RMB exchange rate has increased during the current year dus to
the increase in RMB derominated net liabilities at fhe current year end as compared
with the preceding year end.

The Company's sensitivity to US doHar exchange rate has increased during the current
year mainky due to the ncrease in US dollar denominated nonr-trade amount due 20 2
subsidiary at current ycar end as compared with the preceding year emd. The
Company's seasitivity to Hi{ dollar exchange rate has decreased during the current year
mainly duc to the decrease in HK dollar denominated non-trade amounts due to a
subsidiary and the vltimate holding comgpany at the current year end as compared with
the preceding year end. The Company's sensitivity to RMB exchange rate has
increased during the current year mainly due to the increase in RMB denominated non-
trade amount due to a subsidiary at the current year crd as compared with the preceding
year end,

Intercst rate risk management

Sumrnary guantitative data of the Group's interest-bearing financial instruments can be
found in Section {v) of this Note. The Group’s policy is to obtain fixed rate borrowings
0 reduce volatility. However, it may borrow at variable rates when considered
ecaonomical to do s0.

Interest rate sensitivity

‘The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for non-derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period and the stipulated
change taking place at the beginning of the {inancial year and held constant throughout
the reporting year in the case of instrements that have Roating rates. A 100 basis point
increase or decrease is used when assessing interest rale risk and represenis the
management's assessment of the possible change in interest rates,
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4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS
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1f interest rates had been 100 basis points higher or lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s;

. Profit before income tax for the year ended December 31, 2013 would decrease /
increase respectively by RMB109 million (2012 : decrease / increase respectively
by RMBS86 miilion). The Group's sensitivity to intcrest rates has increased during
the current year due {o the increase in the carrying amount of variable rate debt
instruments.

. It is the Group’s accounting policy to capitalise borrowing cosis relevant o
property development, Hence, the above mentioned interest rate fiuctuation may
not fully impact the profit in the year where interest expense is incurred and
capitalised but may affect profit in future Gnancial years,

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher or lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Company’s profit before incone tax for the year ended December 31,
2013 would decrease / increase respectively by RMB4 million (2012 : decrease /
increase respectively by RMBG million). The Company's sensitivity 10 interest rates
has decreased during the current year mainly due to the decrease in variable rate debt
instruments.

(i) Equity price risk management

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising {rom equity investment classified as
lield-for-trading.

Furiher details of equity investments can be found in Note 18 to the financial statements.
The management is of the view that the equity price risk is not significant for the Group

due 1o the relatively small amount of such investments carried. Hence no price seasitivity
analysis is gresented.
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{iv) Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that 2 counlerparty may default on its contractual obligations
resulting in financial loss to the Group. The Group has adopied a policy of only dealing
with creditworthy counterpartics and oblaining sufficient collateral where appropriate, as
a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.  For sales of properties,
sales proceeds are fully settled concurrent with delivery of properties.

The Groap does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparly or
any group of counterparties having similar characteristics except for non-trade amounts
due from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries, Part of the amounts due from nen-
controlling interests are covered by undistributed retained earnings of the subsidiary yet to
be distributed as dividends and future earnings that are expected to be distributed by the
subsidiary lo the non-confrolling shareholders (Note [3). Information on credit risk
relating to other receivables are disciosed in Note 17, The credit risk on cash and cash
equivalents is limited because the counlerparifes are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by inlernational credit rating agencies.

The Group’s maximum cxposure to credit risk comprise (i) the sum of the carrying
amounts of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, grossed up for any
allowances for losses; and (i) credit risk relating to guarantces of approximately
RMBI1.565 billion (2012 : RMB2.436 billion} to banks for the benefit of the Group's
customars in respact of mortgage loans provided by the banks to these customers for the
purchase of (he Group's development propertics, as claborated in Note 37 to the financial
statements.

(v}  Liguidity risk management

The Group maintains cash aud cash equivatents, obtains external bank loans and issues
converlible notes and senior notes with staggered repayment dates. The Group zlso
minimises liquidity risk by keeping committed credit lines avaifable. At December 31,
2013, the Group had available RMB9.915 billion (2012 : RMBL.832 bitlion) of undrawn
comunitled bank credit facilities in respect of which atl precedent conditions bad been met.

In managing Jiquidity risk, the management prepares cash flow forecasls using various
assumptions and monitors the cash Oows of the Group.
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Liguidity and interest risk analyses

Non-derivative financial liabilities

The following tables detail the remaining contraciual maturity for non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash fNows of
financial hiabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group and Company can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. The adjustment
column represents the estimated future interest attibutable to the instrument included in
the maturity analysis which is nol incuded in the carrying amount of the financial
liabilities on the statement of financial position.

Weighted Oz
average demand More than  More than
effective  or within iyeario 2 yeatsto Moge than

imerest rate 1 yzar 2 years 5 years Syears  Adjustntents Tatal
% RMB'000  RMB'000  RMEB'CD RMB'030  RMB'OG0  RMBOOG

GROUP
2013

Mon-interest

bearing 5,788,605 20,000 - . - 5,808,605
Variable inlesest

e insimments 6.4 3,598,046 Z.410935 4,592,858 240771 (2,098,057 10919791
Eixed interest

rate instrunants 9.4 345,448 - 6,267,330 - 191.360) 6.521.918
Total 9732,099 2,439,935 | AR 240716 2,159,417 23250314
2012
Noo-inlerest

bearing 5271436 20,000 - - - 529143

Yarlable interest
rale instrumenis 6.1 2.905.306  4,597.065  [.433,433 (415,342 {L2339.340;  R.611.BID

Fixed interest
rate insiruments 10,7 24,066 577,983 L B854350 2.513.200 (122,693 4890206
Total 800,818 4705048 3221081 L999.540  (LAG009) JEI34452
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[n 2013, the maximum amount that the Group could be obliged to settle under the
finenciat guarantee contracts related to bank loans of buyers is RMBL.565 billion
{2012 : RMB2.436 biflion) (Note 37). The carliest period that the guerantees could be
called is within 1 year (2012 : 1 year) from the end of the reporting period.  As
mentioned in Note 37, the management considers that the likelihood of these guarantess
being called upon is low.

In 2013, the maximum contingent amount that the Company could be obliged 1o scitle
under the financiat guarantee contracts related to senior notes issued by a subsidiary, loan
facilities granted to subsidiaries and an interest-free current advance to a subsidiary is
RMB4.135 billion ¢2012 : RMB2.359 billion) (Nete 37). Cut of the maximum
consingent amount of RMB4,135 billion (2012 : RMB2.359 billion), RMB3.842 billion
(2012 : RMB2.011 billion) is jointly guarantesd by the Company and five of it
subsidiaries. The earliest period that the guarantees could be called is within 1 year
(2012 : 1 year) from the end of the reporting period.

Weighted on
aveqage demand  Mere than  Mfoze than
effeztive  orwithin | yearto 2yearsto Mo than

imerest qme ] year 2 ¥gars 2 years Syears  Adiusimenls Tousl
& RMD'000 RMB'0O0 RMB'000 RMD'00? RMEBE'000 RMB'000

COMPANY
1013
Non-interest hearing 3381, 118 - . - . 3381118
Varible interest

I#e instruments 53 134,533 12.45CG 340,613 - (62,304} 425,292
Fixed inlerest rate

nsicuments 10.% 134,518 - 4,287 830 - (66,683} _4.336.063
Total A850,565 12,450 4608443 e 2L128,988) _B.247.479¢
M2
Non-interest bearing 1,575,514 - - - - 1,575,574
Vatizkle interes

rare instruments 4.0 233,148 353,317 - - (38.733) 548,342
Fixed interes rate

nstraments i0.9 - 356,503 1,B85.65¢ 2,514,200 197,189 4,659,164
Touzt LE02322 09880 ].BRLASG 2504200 (A5572) _A.JB3.0N0
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Non-derivative financial assets

The following tables detail the expected maturity for non-derivative financial assets. The
tables below have been drawn up based on the undiscounted comracrual maturities of the
financial assets including interest that will be earned on those asscts excepl where the
Group ang the Company anticipate that the cash flows will occur in a different period.

Weighted On
average demand Morc than
effective or within 1 ytar 10 More than
inerest rafe 1 year 2 years 2years  Adjpumens Total
3 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
GROUP
2013
Noa-interest bearing 6,280,867 4,367 - . 6,285,234
Varisble interest
rate instruinents 6.0 99,754 - - {5,616} 94,108
Fixed inerest rate
insteuments 2.4 1,337,078 173,095 - {44,588; £,465,586
Toil TR L S Gezd  TEYEE
3012
Non-interest bearing 3,322,245 - - - 3,322,245
Variable interest
rale instramsaes 6.1 54,097 - - {5,410} 88,687
Fixed interest zate
instruments 2.4 674,106 - - (15.970) 658,136
Foal 4000488 Ltk e (2L380)  4.063.068

In 2013 and 2012, the Company’s non-tierivative financial assets are mainly non-interest
bearing with expected maturity within a year.

Derivative financial instrtuments

The Group's derivative financial instruments comprise of cross currency swaps {Nole 16}
amounting {0 RMB20 miliien (2012 : RMB Nil) with contracied cash flows due more than
2 years (o 5 years,

55

YANLORD LAND GROUP LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013

4  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS
AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

(vi} Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group determines fair values of various financial assets and Gnanclal liabilities in the
following manner:

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial linbilities that are measured at
Jair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets and financial liabifities are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting peried. The following table pives information about how the fair

values of these financial assets and financial Habilities are determined.

Relationship of

Fair Valuation Significant unabsarvable
Finanzial Fair valus as at valuz techniqua(s) unabrarable  inputs 1o
aszets 2013 2012 hierarchy ang key innut{s) inou(s) fajy valuz
RME'000  RMD'GH0
GROUP
Held-for-
teading Quored bid prices
investment 11,056 11,31 Eevel 1 inan aclive macket RIA NIA
Discounted cash flow.
Fuwre cask: flows are estimated
based on lorward exchange rates
{frem observable forward
exchange rates at ihe end of the
reparting perind) and cantrac
Cross forvard raies, discounted at 2
currency e that refleets the credit risk
swap 2040 . Level?  of various cousterpatties MIA NiA
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The Company had no financial assets or liabilities carried at fair value in 2013 and 2012,

There were 1o significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value
lierarchy in the period.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assels and financial liabilities that are not measured
at fair value on o recurring basis (but fair value disclosures are required)

Except as detailed in the following table, management considers that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and finuncial liabilities of the Group and the Company recorded at
amertised cost in the financial statements approximate their fair values:

2013 2012
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
anount value amount value

RMB’000 RMB"000 RMB'000 RMB'(00

GROUP

Financial Liabilities

Convertible notes 326,261 325,452 331,346 342,777
Senior notes 6185391 6,592,426 4,327,812 4,905,833
COMPANY

Financial Liabilitics

Convertible noles 326,261 325,452 331,346 342,117
Senior notes 4,209 800 4,619 926 4,327,818 4,905,833
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Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
GROUP
2013
Financial Liabilities
Convertible notes - 325,452 -
Senior notes s 6,592 426 -
2012
Financial Liabilitics
Convertible notes “ 42,77 -
Senior noles e 5833 -
COMPANY
2013
Tinancial Liabilities
Convertible notes . 325,452 -
Senior notes - 4,619,926 F_—
2012
Financial Liabilities
Convertible notes - 342,777 -
Senior notes . 4,905 8313 -
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Total
RMB'000

325,452
6,592 436

342,777
4,905,833

325,452
4,619,926

342,777
4,205,833
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(@)

Financial instrumenis measured at fair value based on Level 3

Perivative
financial
instruments
RMB'OGO
GROUP AND COMPANY
At Fanuary 1, 2012 {27,210)
Tatal gains or losses in profit or loss 27,785
Total gains or losses in olber comprehensive income (565
At December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2013 -

Capital risk management policies and objectives

The Group manages its capilal to cnsure that entitics in the Group will be able to continue as 3
going concern while maximising the return 1o sharehiolders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt to equity ratio. This ratio is calculated
as tolal debt less cash and cash equivalents divided by equity. Total debt include bank loans,
convertible noles, senior notes and ceftain mon-trade amounts duc o non-controliing
shareholders of subsidiaries and ultimate holding company. Equity for this purpese comprises
equity attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising issued capital, reserves and
acemmulated profits, as well as non-consrolling interests as shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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The net debt to equity ratio as at December 31, 2013 and 2012 were as follows:

GROUP
013 2012

RMB'000 RMB'C00
Total debr 17,531,943 13,586,041
Cash and cash equivalents (7,082,045) (3,540,577
Net dabt 10,449,898 10045484
Equity 27.858.377 26,683,256
Net debt 10 equily ratio 37.5% 37.6%

The Group’s overal! strategy remains unchanged from 2002, In addition, the Group also
specifically monitors the financial ratios of its debt covenants stated in the agreements in respect
of senior noles issued by the Company and its subsidiary and borrowings with the financial
institutions providing the facilities to the Group.

5 HOLDING COMPANY AND RELATED COMPANY TRANSACTIONS
The Company is a subsidiary of Yanlord Holdings Pte. Lid., incorporated in the Republic of
Singapore, which is also the Company's ultimate holding company. Related companies in these
financial statements refer to members of the ultimate holding company's group of companies.
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related companies of the Campany,

have been sliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. The intercompany balances
are unsecused, inlerest-free and repayable on demand unless otherwise stated.
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HOLDING COMPANY AND RELATED COMPANY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd}

During the year, the Group and the Company entered into the following transactions with its ultimate
holding company:
GROUP AND COMPANY
2013 2012
RMB'000 RMB'000

Interest expense 10 ultimate holding company (Note 29) _3.439 1,534

Non-trade amount due to ultimate loiding company is unsecured and repayable on demand. Non-
rade amount due to ultimate holding company amounting to RMB132 million (20§2 : RMBI25
millicn and RMB94 million) bears floaling interest rate of SIBOR plus 1.5% per anmm
(2012 : HIBOR plus 1.6% per annum and cost of funds of the bark plus 1.5% per annum
respectively).

OTHER RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Some of the Group’s transactions and arrangements are with refated parties and the effect of these on
{he basis deterimined belween the parties is reflected in these financial statements. The balances with
related parties are unsecured, interesi-free and repayable on demand unless otherwise siated,

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with related parties:

GROUP
2013 20812
RMB'0G0 RMB'000

Sale of properties to key management personnel
and close members of their families {13,494) 9,191}
Waiver of interest expense from a company in

which a director has conirol over - {21,430)
Other income from jointly controlled entities {2,667) {1,703)
Rental expenses to a director and a company in

which the director has control over 9,288 _9,054
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OTHER RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

Al the end of the reporting period, the Group has outstanding commitmenis of RMBI2 million
(2012 : RMB21 million) to a director and a company in which the director has control over, under
non-cancellable operzting leases in respect of land and buildings for its office premises and staff
accommedation. The Group has contracted with a jointly controlled entity for future minimum Jease
receipts of RMB2 million (2012 : RMB2 million).

Al the end of the reporting perixl, the Group has pre-sales of propesties totaling RMB1O million
(2012 : RMB Nil) o key management and close members of their families. As st December 31, 2013,
advances amounting o RMBO0.5 million (2082 : RMBO0.1 miltion} have been received from key
management and close members of their families in relation lo the pre-sales of properties.

As at December 31, 2013, a bank loan of the Company amounting to RMB293 million
(2012 : RMB330 million) drawn for gencral working capital of the Group s sccured by 2 legal charge
extended by the Company's uliimale holding company and a personal guaranice from a director,

Compensation of directors and key management personnel

‘Fhe remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the year was as follows:

GROUP
2013 2012
RMB'CGO RMB'0G0
Shott-term benefits 51,780 42,861
Post-employment benefits 711 844

2491 43,703
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Leasshold Furniture,
land and Meotor fixures and  Construction-
buildings vehicles equipment  _in-progress Total
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
GROUP
Cost:
At January 1, 2012 187,589 73,209 109,883 535,808 506,489
Additions - 5,831 35,453 31,594 72,878
Reclassification 1,390 - - {1,390) B
Disposals (5,357} (2,616) (16,516} - (24,489)
Transfer 1o properties
for development - - - (201.443) (201,443
At December 31, 2012 83,622 76,424 128,820 364,569 753,435
Additions 1,021 11,567 13,096 184,040 209,724
Acquisition of a subsidiary - - 107 - 107
Reclassification 488 - 456 (944} -
Disposais {11,847) {6,365) {792} - (15,004}
Exchange difference - (12) (14} - (26}
At Becember 31, 2013 173,284 81,614 141,673 547,665 944,236
Accumitlated depreciation:
At Janwary 1, 2032 30,012 44,139 63,870 - 138,021
Depreciation for tlhe year 6,837 9,208 22,377 - 38,422
Elirninated on disposals {232} {1,475 {13,308 - (17,210
Al December 31, 2012 36,617 51,875 70,741 - 159,233
Depreciation for the year 5,339 8,509 22,645 - 37,493
Acquisition of 1 subsidiary - - X - 24
timinated on disposals (3,810) (5,991) (26) . (9.827)
Exchange difference - 13) [E)] - an
At December 31, 2013 39,146 54,380 93,376 - 186,902
Carrying amoui:
At end of year 134,138 20,234 _48.2%7 347,663 57,334
At beginning of year 147,005 4,549 _58.079 364,569 594,202

In 2013, depreciation far the year includes an amount of RMB2 million (2012 : RMB3I tnillion)
capitalised in the Group's properties for development and propestics under development for sale. The
carrying amount of construction-in-progress pledged 1o banks to secure bank loans is disclosed in

Note 22.
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December 31, 2013

8  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Al fair value:
Balance as at beginning of year
Additions
Traosfer from properties for development
Transfer from properties under development for sale
Change in fair vajue (Notes 28 and 31}
Disposais
Balance as at end of year

GROUP

2013 2012
RMB'000 RMB'000
7,975,200 7,079,370
139,127 87,723
- 181,390

97319 -

572,058 664,424
{i8,934) (37,707)
3,764,770 1,975,200

The fair value of invesiment propesties at December 31, 2013 and 2012 have been delermined on the
hasis of valuations carricd out at the respective year cnd dates by an independent valuer having
recognised professionai qualification and recent experience in the [ocation and category of the
propertics being valuad, and not related to the Group. The fair value was determined based on the
direct comparison approach and the income capitalisation approach. In estimating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their current use. There las been no change 10

the valuation technique during the year,

Details of the Group’s invesiment properties and information about the fair value hierarchy as at

December 31, 2013 are as follows:

Level T Leve] 2 Level 3
RMB*Q00 RMB'000 RMB000
GRrOUP
Investment properties
located in the PRC - 8,764,770

There were no transfers between the respective levels during the year,
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Fair value as at
December 31,
2013
RMB'000
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YANLORD LAND GROUP LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES YANLORD LAND GROUP LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2013
8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd) 9 PROPERTIES FOR DEVELOPMENT / COMPLETED PROPERTIES FOR SALE /
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE
The foflowing table shows the significant unobservable inputs used in the valuation modei: GROUP
2013 2012
Fair value ag at Significant RMB’000 RMB'000
December 31, Valvation unebservable Al cost:
Deseription 08 techniguefs) | 0T _Range Properties for devejopment (Non-current assets) 9,960,451 16,079,251
RMB'000 Completed propertics for sale (Current assets) 4,324,410 4,608,340
Completed invessment 7923270 Direct comparison price per RMBS,600 - Propertics under development for sale (Current assets) ::'22!630.?95 zg,ggg,ﬂg
propetiics approach square meter ¥ RMB37.500 42,853,756 20912037
Income market rent par RMEB44 - RMB270 .
capitalisation square meter per Properties for development, completed properties for sale and properties under development for sale
approach montl are Jocated in the PRC.
capil:)!isalion 55%-9.5% Up to the end of the reporting period, total interest capitalised are as follows:
rate
. . . . GROUP
Car parking spaces 409,200 Direct comparison price per unit RMBS2,000 - 2013 2012
approgch RMB230,000 RLTIE:SOO RI\M'IB"{SOO
Invesiment properties 1,332,300 Residuai approach price per RMB26,830 - ,
under construction square meter RMB40,600 Propesties for development 344,21 040,765
Completed properiies for sale 333,580 324,175

™ Any significant isolated ingreases (decreases) in these inputs would resuit in a significantly .
higher (fower) fair value measurement, Properties under development for sale 270,923 1181171

@ Any significant isolated increases (decreases) in these inputs would result in 2 significantly . .
lower (higher) fair value measurement. The carrying amounis of properiies pledged to banks to securc bank loans granted Lo the Group are

disclosad in Note 22,

The carrying amounts of invesiment propertics pledged to banks 10 secure the bank loans granted (©

the Group are disclosed in Note 22. 10 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
COMPANY
The rental income earned by the Group from its investment propertics amounted 1o RMB427 million 2013 2082
{2012 : RMB358 million). Direct operating expenses arising on the investment propesties in the year RMB'000 RMB*000
amoeunzed to RMB4 million (2012 + RMB1 million).
Unguoted equity shares, al cost 2,465 544 2,624 468
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YANLORD LAND GROUP LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TQ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013

10 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

10 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d} Propartion
Country of of ownership
. A . . incorporation interest and
Details of (he Company’s significant subsidiaries are a5 follaws: Name of subsidiary {or residence)  voting power held  Principal aclivities
. 2013 22
Propostion ® %
Countey of of ownership Held by Yanlord Land Pre. L.
incorporation interest and and its subsidiaries
N { subsidiary or residence; voting power field  Principal activities i
22 0 SUbSICIa {or resi ) “““l,‘é“i% £ 2012 2 Smgagare Yanlord Land (HK) Hong Kong 100 100 Management service
% % — =
S s
Held by the Compan # Ilﬂi.ﬁf AP (E AR B
Chengdu Everrising Asse! PRC 51 51 Property development
Yanlord Cornmercial Property Singapore 100 100 Tnvestment holding Mnna.g_cment Co., Ltd. ! and investment
Investments Pte. Ltd, ® mﬁiﬂﬂﬁlif:ﬁ v
(AN YEAERAA E) TRRAAE]
X 3 Chengdu Yanlord Invcstmc t PRC 100 100 M & i
Yan_lord La_nd Pte. Ltd. @ Singapore 100 100 Investment hotding Managgelm::l C; Lid. ™ n ﬂﬂzn;!gvclm:f riee
{CRENERNT RRCERREEERAT
Yanford Lang (HK} Co,, Lid. ™ Hong Kong 00 100 Management service Chengdu Yanlord Property FRC ¢ 100 Property mamgement
{E P EEYEIRAT) Management Co., Lid,
' R A IR A S
Yanlord Hotel Managcmcnt PRC 100 - RHotel and serviced
Held by Yanlord Land Pte. Lid. {Chengdy) Co,, Lid. ™ apartment management
and its subsidiaries (IEEEE G ARA S
Palovale Ple Ltd Singapore 67 67 Investment holding ﬁl‘%‘} }Eﬁéﬁ%%ﬁ;ﬂif—‘on Lid.® PRC 100 100 Praperty development
st d o = A E] K |
HIEBAHREGT (R ER AR A
. Yanlord Real Estate (Chengdu) Co., PRC 70 70 Property development
Yanlord I-‘Ilomscc Investnents Singapore 50 S0 Investment holding { Bév) andp;?]a?;agemenr:
Pte. Led. ¥ f‘fﬁﬁﬁ(ﬁﬁﬁﬁ)ﬁ?«&ﬁﬁl
{ZiEfRRHARAE
X Guiyang Yanlord I’ropctiy PRC 100 100 Property management
Yanlord Praperty Pte, Lid. ¥ Singapore 60 60 Investinent holding Management Co., Lid.
{fEEERLE PSS A E
Yanlord Real Estate Pie, Lid, ® Singapore 95 95 Investmens holding Igan]mg chyunn Investment PRC 100 - Management service
{CEEKEAERAT 0., Lid. ® and jnvestment
%#Lﬂﬁﬁhm
East Hero Investment Lid, ® Hong Kang 100 100 Investment holding )
R T IRA T Nan_]mg Yginlord Garden PRC (00 100 Lan:jdsc‘apmg and
pardening
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10 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Counlry of
incorporation

Name of subsidiary (or residence)

Proportion
of ownership
interest and

voling power held

Principal activities

Held by Yanlord Land Pie, Lid.
and jts subsidiasies

Nanjing Yaniord Hotel PRC
Management Co., Lid, ¥

BIR{CIEREEIARAT

Nanjing Yanlord Jiangzhou PRC
Property Development Co,, Ltd. @
ERETNEE AR

Manjing Yanlord Property PRC
Management Co., Ltd, @

B E AR AT

Nanjing Yanlord Real Estate PRC
Co., Lid. ®

R L AER AR

Nanjing Yanlord Tourism PRC

Development Co., Ltd, #®

AR ENR R TR AT

Yanlord Investment (Nanjing) PRC
Co., Ltd. ™ ]
{CERIER AT

Shenzhen Long Wei Xin PRC

Investment Co., Lid. ® )
FHITT AR R I A R =]

Shenzhen Yanlord Property BRC
Management Co., Lid. ™

T Al S IR A E]

Yanlord Land (Shenzhen) PRC

Co., Lid. ®
BRI IRAT]
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2013
%

60

100

75

100

2012
%

100

75

100

Hotel and serviced
apartment management

Properly development
and management

Propertly management

Property development

Tourism Ivestment
and asset management

Property development
and investment

Property development

Propesty management

Property developiment
and managesnant

YANLORD LAND GROUP LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013

10 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd}

Proportion
Country of of ownership
incorporation interest and
HName of subsidiary {or residence) voting power held
2013 2002
% %
Held by Yanlord Land Pie, Lid.
and its subsidiaries
Shanghai Hong Ming Ge PRC 60 60

Food & Beverage Service
Management Co,, Lid, ¥
LE AR S TR

Shanghai Pudong New District PRC 50 50
Private Yanlord Kindergarten ®®

LATTHFERE R ELSLE

Shanghai Renjie Hebin PRC 51 51
Garden Property Co., Lid.
LB AR E BN E AR

Shanghai Renpin Property PRC 50 50
Development Co., Lig. “*™

R R R RS

Shunghai Yantord Elevator PRC led] -
Co., Lid, @™

LA A

Shanghai Yanlord Gacgiao PRC 50 50

Praperty Co., Lid, ®®
A ERTFE B IRAE

Shanghai Gusheng PRC 60 -
Construction Intelligent

Engineering Co., Lid,

kel E Rk ot ol Wt = [ RN

Shanghai Yaniord Honggiac PRC 60 60
Property Co., Ltd. ™

et L 5 7 i = N

Shanghai Yanlord Investment PRC 100 100
Management Co., Lid. ®

LiHIEE EEERAS
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Principal activitics

Restaurant operation

Kindergarien operation

Prapesty development

Property development
and management

Sale, installation, repair
and maintenance of
clevators

Property developinent

Construction engineering
Property development
and management

Management service
and investmznt
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10 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES {Cont'd)

Country of
incorporation

Name of subsidiary

{or residence)

Proportion
of ownership
interest and

voling power held

Principal activities

Held by Yantord Land Pte. Ltd.
and its subsidiaries

Shanghai Yaniord Property
Co., Ltd. ®
B EBA A RAE

Shanghai Yanlord Property
Management Co., Lid, ™
L ERE SRR

Shanghai Yanlord Real Estale
Co,, Lid, @
L ER R RAREAT

Shanghai Yanlord Senlan
Reat Estate Co., Lid. ®
L EE R AR

Shanghai Yanlord Xing Tang
Real Estate Co., Ltd. ™
A TR AR ]

Shanghai Yanlord Yangpu
Property Co,, Ltd, ™ )
L EE R AR A

Shanghai Zhongting Property
Development Co., Lid, ®

LB E R EEIRAT

Yanlord Land Investment
Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. ™
{HER L ISR LR H M

Sanya Yanlord Real Estate
Co., le_.""
ZEW{EREERLAE

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC
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2013

%

67

67

57

60

100

2012

F]

&1

&7

57

G0

100

100

Praperty development

Property management

Property development

Property development

Property development

and managemsnt

Property developrment

Property development

Muanagement service

Property development
and managenien

YANLCRD LAND GROUP LIMITED AND I'TS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TQ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013

10 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Proportion
Country of of ownership
incorporation interest and

{or residence) voling power held
2013 2012
% %

Name of subsidiary

Held by Yanlord Land Pte, Ltd.
and jss subsidiaries

Suzhou Yinghan Property PRC 100 100
Development Co., Lid. ®

TR R 2 BRAE

Suzhou Zhoaghui Property PRC 100 100

Development Co., Lid. ™
TR AR T

Yanlord Property (Suzhou) PRC 60 G0
Co., F1d. ®
{iERE PG IR )

Tangshan Yanlord Property PRC 50 50
Management Ca., Lig, ‘"™

BB EARAT

Yaniord Ho Bee Property PRC 50 50
Development (Tangshan)
Co., Lud. "™

CiEfEEr TR L ERAR]

Tianjin Yanlord Beiyang PRC 60 G0
Reat Bstate Co., Lid. @
KBR{UEILRRIERAT

Tianjin Yanlerd Garden PRC 160 100
Co., Lid. ™

R AREHRATH

Tianjin Yanlord Haihe PRC 80 80

Development Co., Lid. ™
KRR AATR AR
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Principal activities

Properly development

Property development

Property development

Property management

Property development
and management

Property development
and management

Landscaping and
gardening

Property development



YANLORD LAND GROUP LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES YANLORD LAND GROUP LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2013
10 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 10 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
Proportion
Country of of ownership @ Although the Group doss not effectively own more than 50% of the equity shares of these
incorporation interest and entities, it has control over the financial and operating policies of these entities and hence
Name of subsidiary (or residence)  voting power leld Principal activities regards these entities as subsidiaties.
013 2002
% ® @ meorporated duting the year,
Held by Yanlord Land Pte. Ltd,
and its subsidiaries ™ ‘The proportion of ownership interest and voting power held by the Group is 50.2%.
Tianjin Yanlord Property PRC 100 100 Property management ®  Acquired during the year for a consideration of RMB1 million,

Management Co., Lid, ®
Rt R FHRAE]
Notes on auditors
Yanlord Development PRC 100 £00 Property development
(Tianjin) Co., Lid. ¥ “  Augited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, Singapore.
{ZEERFRSYERAT
® Audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA LLP, Shanghai, PRC for consolidation purposes,

Zhuhai Yanlord Heyou PRC 57 57 Properly devetopment
Lawd Co., Lid. ™ and management
MEEEaREERAT 11 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
GROUP

Zhwhai Yanlord Industrial PRC 95 95 Property development 2013 2012
Co., Ltd, ¥ RMB'000 RMB"000
i ARAARLT

Cost of investment in associate 2,441 2,441
Zhuhai Yanlord Property PRC 90 80 Propesty managenent Share of post-acquisition loss (2.441) (2,441
Mansgement Co., Lid. © . o
BB EERAS
Zhuhai Yanlord Real Estate PRC 20 s0 Property develapment Non-trade amount due from an associate (Cusrent assets} (Nete 6) 354 213

Deveiopment Co., Lid, ®

S ER LR RHRAT

Zhuhai Yanlord Youmei PRC 57 57 Property developinent
Land Co., Etd. ® and managenent

BB E R R EMERS S
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11 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Cont’d)

Details of the Group's associate are as follows:

YANLORD LAND GROUP LIMITED AN I'TS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Decernber 31, 2013

12 INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Cosl of investmens in jeintly controtled entities
Share of post-acquisition profit (loss}

GROUP
2013 2012
RMB'O00  RMB'OGO
523,688 346,557

76,798 (10,534)

660,486 335,723

Proportion
Country of of ownership
incorporation interest and
Name of associate (or residence) voting power held Principal activity
A 2013 2012
% %
Yanlord Property Investmenis Singapore 235 25 Investment holding

Pte. Ltd. @
AR PR BT TR 2, F)

Noie on auditors

W Audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, Singapore,

Swmmarised financial information in respact of (he Group's associate is set out as below:

GROUP
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000

Total assets 120 77
Total liabilitics (332) 291)
Net liabilities 272 214
Group's share of associate’s et liabilities % -
L.oss for the year {58) (16}
Group's share of associate’s loss for the year . -

W The Group's share of the associale’s net Habiliies and loss is zero as the Group discontinues
recogiising further losses when the Group's share of loss of the associate exceeds is interest in the
associale. A$ at December 31, 2013, the Group’s share of unrecognised losses of the associate for
the year and cumukatively amounted to RMB15,000 (2012 : RMBI9,000) and RMEG8,000
(2012 : RMB53,000) respectively.

7a

Non-teade amounts due from joinily controfled entitics
(Current assets) (Note 6)

Details of the Group's jointly controlled emities are as follows:

Proportion
Country of of ownership
incorporation interest and
Name of jointly controiled entity {or residence) voting power held
003 201
) %
Held by Yanlord Land Pte. Lid,
Singapore Inteligent Eco Jsiand Singapore 57 57
Developiment Pre. Ltd. ¢
R A BRI AR
Held by Singapore Intelligent Eco
Island Development Pie, Lid,
Sino-Singapore Nanjing Eco Hi-tech PRC 28 28
Island Davelopment Co., Ltd. ®
PR R AR S A A TR AT
Held by Sino-Singapore Manjing Eco
Hi-tech Island Development Co., Lid.
Sino-Singagore Nanjing Eco PRC 28 28

Hi-tech Island Investment and
Development Co., Ltd. weoeo
P RESTHE B TARERAE

%

230 -

Principal activities

Investment holding

Property development

Propeniy development
and investment
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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12 INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (Cont'd)

Principai activities

Praportion
Counlry of of ownership
incorporation interest and
Name of jointly controlled entity {or residence) voting power held
003 2012
% %
Held by Sino-Sinpapore Nanjing
Eco Hi-tech Istand Investment and
Development Co., Ltd,
Nanjing Zhoudao Modern PRC 20 20
Agriculture Development Co., Ltd. @
BEEMGEARERERAE
Nanjing Zhoudao Modern PRC 20 20
Service Development Co., Ltd, ™
RS S LR RERAE
Nanjing Zhovdao Property PRC 28 28

Development Co., Lid. ®
BIF SR AE R A E

W Although the Group owns more than 50% of the equity shares of this entisy, both sharcholders
of this entity have joint control over its financial and operaling policies and henee the Group
regards this entity as a jointly controlled entity.

Noles on auditors

™ Audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, Singapore.

Agriculture
development and
hotel management

Propartly service

Property development
and management

®  Audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA LLP, Shanghai, PRC for consolidation purposcs,
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12 INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (Cont'd)

Summarised financial information in respect of the jointly controlled entities is set out as below:

GROUP
2013 2012

RMEB'000 RMB’000
Total assets 1,053,536 580,089
Total liabilities {52) {102}
Net assets 1,053,484 588,987
Group's share of jointly controlled entilies’ net assets _ 601486 335723
Profis (Loss) for the year 333,741 {10,310)
Group's share of jeintly controlled entities’ profit {loss) for the year §7,632 (5,990}

13 NON-TRADE AMOUNTS DUE FROM / TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Amounts due from non-controlling sharcholders of subsidiaries are unsecured, inlerest-free and
repayable on demand except for the following:

a)

b

a

4

€)

Amounts of RMB47 million and RMB28 million (2012 : RMB46 miliien, RMBS million and
RMBI10 million) which bear interest at 5.0% and 6.0% per annum respectively (2012 ; 5.0%,
6.0% and 6.3% per annum respectively) and are secured by the non-controlling shareholder's
shares in a subsidiary and undistributed retained earnings of a subsidiary yet 1o be disteibuted as
dividends to the non-controiling sharcholder of that subsidiary.

Amount of RMB94 million (2012 : RMBI8 million and RMB71 million) which bear interest at
6.0% per annum (2012 : 6.6% and 6.0% per annum respectively) and is secured by expected
future earnings that will be distribuled by a subsidiary to the non-controlling sharehoiders of
that subsidiary.

Amount of RMB40 million (2012 : RMB Nily which bears interest at 6.0% par annum
£2012 : Nil%), is unsecured and repayable on demand.

Amount of RMB154 million (2012 : RMB Nil} which bears interest at 6.2% per anuam
(2012 : Nil%), is unsecured and is repayable within 2 years,

Amount of RMB4 million (2012 ;: RMB Nil) which is unsecured, interest-free and repayable
within 2 years from the end of the reperting period.
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13

14

NON-TRADE AMOUNTS DUE FROM / TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES {Cont’d)

As at December 31, 2013, current amounts dug 1o non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries are
unsecured, inlerest-free and repayable on demand oxcept for an amount of RMBS0Q million
(2012 : RMB93 million), which is guaranteed by the Company.

As at December 31, 2012, non-current amounts of RMB 145 million and RMBS1 million due to a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary were unsecured, bore interest at 6.4% and 6.7% per annum
respectively and were sepayable within 3 years. The amounis were repaid during the year.

As al December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, non-current amount of RMB20 million due w0 2
non-controlling sharehoider of subsidiaries is unsccored, interest-free and has no fixed repayment
terms. Management is of the view that the non-controlling sharcholder of subsidiaries will not
demand repayment of RMB20 miltlion within $2 manths from the end of the reporting pericd.

INTANGIBLE ASSET
GROUP
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
Clab membership 613 61

At December 31, 2083 and 2012, the management assested the marketable vaiue of the club
membership and determined that it was in cxcess of its carrying amount.

DEFERRED TAXATION

GROUP
2013 2002
RMB'000 RMB'000
Deferred tax assels 219,707 128,967
Delerred tax liabilities (1,363,647 (1,160,248)

(1.143.040)  (L03L28D

9

YANLORD LAND GROUP LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2613

15

DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont'd)

The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by the Group and
movements thereon during the current and prior reporting year,

Accelerated
1ax depreciation
Revaluation and excess of
of investmenl  tax deductible  Wilbholding

_preperties expenses lax Tax losses Total
RMB*000 RMB'000 RMB'O0  RMB000  RMBTO0O

GROUP
At January 1, 2032 (829,930 33842 {138,775} 84,272 (830,59%)
{Charge) Credit to prefit or loss

for the year (Note 30) (212,672) 9,072 {114,158} (18,219} (331,971
Transfer to intoms (ax payable - - 131294 - 131,294
Al December 31, 2012 {1,042,609) 62,914 {117,639} 66,053 (1,031,281)
(Cherge) Credit to profit or loss

for the year (Note 30} {185,579) 26,823 (86,137) 63,517 (181,026}
Transfer to income tax payable - - 68,367 - 68,367
Excliange difference (38) - 138 - -
Al Decembear 31, 2013 (1,328,326) §0.737 (13532 120978  (1,043,940)

Pursuant 10 PRC (ax regulations, ai the end of the reporting period, the Group has unwtilised tax
josses of RMBOSC mitlion {2012 : RMBS99 million) available for offset against future profits. A
deferred tax assel of RMB130 million (2012 : RMB66 million) has been recognised in respect of
RMB520 million {2012 : RMB264 million) of such losses at the PRC tax rate of 23%. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining RMB460 millions (2002 : RMB333 million)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Tax Josses may be carried forward for 5 years
from the year after the losses are incurred, subject to the conditions imposed by law including the
retention of majority shareholders as defined.
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
GROUP
2013 202
RMB’000 RMB'000

Cross currency swaps, designated in
hedge accounting relationships

20,402 -

The Group uses cross currency swaps to hedge the foreign currency risks arising from the interest and
principai payments of its RMB denominated senior notes. Comracts with nominal values of RMB2
billion have fixed interest paymants denominated in US dollars at 4,325% per annum and fixed interest
receipts denominated in RMB at 5.375% par anmum,

All of the Group's cross currency swaps are designated and effective as cash flow hedges and the fair
value of these cross currency swaps, amouniing to RMB20 millien (2012 : RMB Nil) has been
recognised in other comprehensive income. Amount of RMBI6 million (2012 : RMB Nil) has been
reclassified from equity lo profit or loss during the year,

The cross corrency swaps seitle on a scini-annual basis, with matusity on May 23, 2016, All cross
currency swap conlracts exchanging RMB denominated interest and principal payments for US datlar
denominated intercst and principal payments are designated as cash flow hedges in order to reduce the
Group's cash flow exposure resulting from the flucvation of RMD against US dollar over the tenure of
the senior notes. The cross cusrency swaps and the interest and principal payments on the senior noies
occur simultaneously and the amount recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from
cquity to profit or Juss over the 1enure of the senior notes.
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18

OTHER RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS

GROUP COMPANY
2013 2012 2013 2012
RMEB'000 RMB'000 RMEB'000 RMB'0G0
Advances to suppliess 18,742 18,068 . .
Deposits for purchase of land for
develepment and construction
of properties 20,711 20,11 - -
Staff loans 8,345 8,559 - -
Prepayments 25,831 11,946 3 374
Sales tax prepayments 198,895 132,854 . -
Interest receivables 11,486 291 - -
Other receivables ¢ 126,758 110,090 - .
411268 302,519 — 24

" included in other receivables is an advance of RMB20 million (2012 : RMB20 millioa) 1o a
PRC government agent for the resettlement of oceupants from land which the Group intends 1o
purchase.

The management considers the credit risk on other receivables and deposits 10 be limited because the
counterparties are government agenrs or third parties with long business relationships with the Group.

HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENT

GROUP
2013 2012
RMB'000 RMB"000
Quoted equity security, at fair value 11,056 11311

Held-for-trading investment preseats the Group with opportunities for renurn through dividend income
and fair value gains. This investment Lias no fixed maturity or coupon rate.  The fair value of this
security is based on the closing quoted markel price on the last market day of the financial year.
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HEDGING RESERVE

The hedging reserve represents hedging gains and losses recognised on the effective portion of cash
flow hedges. The cumulative deferrcd gain or loss on the hedge recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in hedging reserves is reclassified to profit of loss when the hedged

19 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
GROUP COMPANY
2013 2012 2013 2012
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Pledged bank deposits 29,043 15,072 . -
Cash on hand 2,004 1,853 - -
Cash at bank 5,911,442 2,954,955 6,894 2,601
Fixed deposits 1,168,599 583,769 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 7.082.045 3,540,577 6,894 2.601

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to secure certain morigage loans provided
by banks to customers for the purchase of the Group’s development properties and as securities for
bank [oans (Note 22},

20 SHARE CAPITAL
GROUP AND COMPANY
2013 02 2013 2012
000 *000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Nunber of ordinary shares

1ssued and paid up:
At beginning and of year 1,948,736 1,948,736 1,261,726 1,261,726

Fuily paid up ordinary shares, which have no par value, carey one vote per share and a right to
dividends as and when declared by the Company.
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transaclion impacts the profit or foss.

Movement in hedging reserve:

GROUP
2013 2012
RMB'000 RMB'000
At January 1 - .
Change in fair value of cross currency swaps 20,402 -
Reclassification to profit or loss on cash flow hedge (45.624) -
At December 31 4,77 .
22  BANK LOANS
GROUP COMPANY
2013 2012 2013 2012
RMB'000 RMB'00C RMB'000 RMB'000
The bank loans are repayable
as follows:
On demand or within one ysar 3,262,391 2,549,816 - 10,260
More than one year but
not exceeding (wo years 2,141,535 3,734,044 10,940 319,509
More than two years but
not exceeding five ycars 3,803,298 1,181,419 282,198 -
More than five years 1,580,679 954,000 - -
10,797,903 8,419,279 293,138 329,769
Less: Amount due for settlement
within 12 imonths
(shown uader current
liabilities) (3,262.391)  (2,549.816) - (10.2600
Amount due for settlement
after 12 months ~1.535.512 2,869,463 293,138 319,509
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23

GROUP COMPANY
2013 012 2013 2012
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'0C0 RMB’000
Secuzed:
- Current bank loans 1,685,313 1,991,060 - -
- Non-current bank loans 6,143,142 3,274,800 - -
7,828.455 5,265,860 - .
Unsecured:
- Current bank loans 1,577,078 558,756 - 10,260
« Non-curtent bank loans 1,392,370 2,594,663 293,138 319,509
2,969,448 3,153,419 293.138 329.76%
10,797,903 3419279 293,138 329,769

The following assets are pledged for the above secured barik Joans and undrawn loan facilities:

GROUP
2013 2012

RMB'000 RMBE'000
Progperties for development 947,054 -
Completed propertics for sale 419,177 637,921
Properties under developmant for sale 19,679,508 4,457,780
Invesinent properties 5,505,000 4,492,184
Construction-in-progress 519,573 53,177
Bank deposits 10,266 9.617
CONVERTIBLE NOTES

The convertible noles comprise noles issued in 2007 and 2009.

(a)

The convertible nowes issued on February 6, 2007 (“MNotes 2012”) matured on February 6,
2012. The Notes 2012 accrued interest at 4.G0% per annum, compounded semi-annualy.
Accrued interest on Notes 2012 was payable only at maturity or upon early redemplion, and
would be foregont upon conversion of the Notes 2012, The conversion price was initially
§52.77531 per share, and had been adjusted to $$2.5900 per share as at December 31, 2011 as a
result of dividends declared by the Company. The conversion price could be further adjusted
for certain specified dilutive events.
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Cont'd)

On February 4, 2010, the holders of S$$315 million {equivalent to RMBL.513 billion}
outstanding Notes 2012 exercised the option to redeem the outstanding Notes 2012,

On February 6, 2012, the Company fully redecmed the remaining 5$24 million (equivalent 1o
RMBI119 million) outstanding Notes 2012 in accosdance with the terms set out in the Indentore
dated February 6, 2007. In addition, the cquity reserve of Notes 2012 amounting to 5525
million {equivalent to RMB129 million} was reclassified to accumulated profits in 2012,

() The convertible notes isssed on July 13, 2009 (“Notes 20£4™) witl mature on July 13, 2014,
The Notes 2014 accrue interest at 5.85% per annum with interest payable on January 13 and
July 13 of each year, commencing on January 13, 2010. The conversion price was initially
$$2.6208 per share, and has been adjusted 1o S32.5600 and S3$2.5200 per sharc as at
December 31, 2012 and 2013 respectively as a resull of dividends declared by the Company.
The conversion price may be further adjusted for certain specified dilutive and other events.
The Comgpany may, at any time on or after July 13, 2011 but before July 3, 2014, mandatorily
conver? all of the Nofes 2014 if the volume weighted average price of the Company's shares is
at least 130% of the conversion price in effect on the date of nolice, The holders have the right
to tequire the Company to redeem afl or some of the Notes 2014 on July 13, 2012,

On July 13, 2012, the holders of $$305 million (equivalent to RMBL.516 billion) outstanding
Noles 2014 exercised the option 10 redeem the cutstanding Notes 2014.  Accordingly, (e
nominal amount of Notes 2014 which remains outstanding for conversion into ordinary shares
a5 a1 December 31, 2013, was reduced to 5870 million {equivalent to RMB335 million)
(2012 : S$70 million (equivalent to RMB357 million}). The Notes 20E4 are convertible inte
approximately 27,777,777 and 27,343,750 n2w ordinary shares of the Company as at
December 31, 2013 and 2012 respectively based on the adjusted conversion price at the eption
of the holders.

As at December 31, 2013, Notes 2014 is classified a5 a current liability as it will manre on July 13,
2014,

The net proceeds received from the issue of the Motes 2012 and Notes 2014 have been allocaled

between the liability and cquity components. The equity component represents the fair value of the
embedded option of the Company to convert the liability into equity.
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GROUP AND COMPANY
2013 2012

RMB'000 RMB000

Nominal value of convertible notes issued 1,794,188 4,340,424
Equity component (gross before allocation of transaction costs) (290,803) {661,280)
Transaction costs (21,907) (99,089)
Liability component a1 dare of issue 1,481,478 3,580,055
Cumulative interest accrued 552,480 977,752
Cumulative interest paid (334,473) (335,176}
Converted to equity - (632,732}
Redemption (1,356,267)  {3.260,618)
Fair vaiue adjustment (7.329) (3990
Total 335,804 341,484

Tnterest payable within one year included in other payables

{Note 26) {9,633} (10,138)
Liability component at end of year 326,261 __331,346

The comulative inierest accrued on Notes 2014 is calculated by applying an effective interest rate of
11.3% (2012 ; 11,3%) per annum 1o the Hability component. In 2012, the cumulative interest accrued
en Notes 2012 up to maturity date on February 6, 2012 was caleulated by applying an effective
interest rate of 8.0% per annum to the liability component.

The managemen: eslimates the fair value of the liabifity component of the Notes 2014 at
December 31, 2013 to be approximately RMB325 million. This fair value has been calculalted by
assuming redemption on July 13, 2014 and using interest rate of 8.9% per annum, compounded semi-
annvally. The interest rate is based on Singapore government’s two-year treasury bilk vate of 1.i%
per annum which will mature on April 1, 2016, a credit spread risk margin of 6.3% per annum and
holding the liguidity risk rate as a percentage of both the risk free rate and the liquidity risk rate
constant,

The management estimates the [air value of the fability component of the Noles 2014 at
December 31, 2012 to be approximately RMB343 million. This faic value has been calculated by
assuming redemption on July 13, 2014 and using interest rate of 8.0% per annum, compounded senii-
annuatly, The interest rate is based on Singapore government's two-year treasury bill rate of .3%
per annum which wilt mawre on February 1, 2015, a credit spread risk margin of 6.4% per annum
and holding the liquidity risk rate as a percentage of both the risk free rate and the liquidity risk rate
constant.
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The senior notes comprise notes issued in 2010, 2012 and 2013,

(a) The senior notes issued on May 4, 2010 ¢“Notes 2017"y will mamre on May 4, 2017, The
senior notes bears interest at 9.5% per annum with interest payable on May 4 and November 4
of eacl: year, conmencing on November 4, 2010, Prior to the marturity of the senior notes, the
Company may redecm the notes, in whole or in parl, based on the stipulated redemption price at
the point of redempiion. The senior notes are denominated in US dollars.

(b) The senior notes issued on March 29, 2011 (“Notes 2018") will mature on March 29, 2018.
The senior notes bears interest at 10.625% per annum with inlerest payable or March 29 and
September 29 of each year, commencing on September 29, 20E1. Prior to the maturity of the
senior notes, the Company wnay redeem the potes, in whole or in part, based on the stipulated
redemiption price at the point of redemption. The senior notes are denominated in US dollars.

(c) The senior notes issued on May 23, 2013 (“Notes 2016") will mature on May 23, 2016, The
senior notes bears interest at 5.375% per ammum with interest payable on May 23 ané
November 23 of each year, commencing on November 23, 2013, Prior to the matrity of the
senior notes, the issuer, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, may redeem the
notes, in whole or in part, based on the stipulated redemplion price at the point of redemption.
The senior notes are denosmninated in RMB.

GROUP COMPANY
2013 2012 2013 2012
RMB'G00 EMB’000 RMB'O)0 RMB™000

Mominal value of senior notes issved 6,439,203 4,725,345 4,439,203 4,725,345

Transaction costs (126,999) (103,106 _ {96,863) _(103,106)
At date of jssue @ 6,312,204 4,622,23% 4,342,340 4,622,239
Cumutative interest accrued [,447,255 994,633 1,375,350 994,633
Cumulative interest paid (1,300,523) {(871,632) (1,246,331} (871,632)
Exchange difference (168,328) {320,785 (168,328) _ (320,780
Total 6,280,608 4,424,451 4,303,531 4,424,451

Interest payable within one year
included in other payables {Nate 26) (105,217) (96,633) (93,731 _ {96,631
Liability (ron-current} at end of year 6,185,391 4,327.818 4,209,800 4,327,818
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SENIOR NOTES (Cont'd)

@ Transaction costs included non-audit fees of RMB2 imillion, RMB2 million and RMB2 million
paid to the auditors of the Company in 2013, 2011 and 2010 respectively in cannection with the
issuance of senior notes of the Company (Note 31).

@ Changes in amount al datc of issue relative to the preceding year's amount include the effect of

translation to the presentation currency and have been included in the currency translation reserve.

The cumlative interests acered on Notes 2017, Noles 2018 and Notes 2016 are cateulated by
applying effective interest rates of 10.3% (2012 : 10.3%), 11.3% (2012 : 11.3%) and 6.0% per
annum respectively.

The management estimates the fair value of Notes 2017, Notes 2018 and Notes 2016 at December 31,
2013 to be approximately RMBI.943 biliion, RMB2.677 billion and RMBL973 billien
(2012 : RMBZ.046 billion, RMB2.860 billion and RMB Nil) respectively. These fair values are
basad on the prices obtained from banks® publications.

In 2010, six of its subsidiaries provided a joint guarantee in respect of Notes 2017 issued by the
Company amounting to RMB1.987 biilion (equivalent to US$300 million) for a term of seven years
up lo May 4, 2017, The joint guaraniee approximates RMB1.829 billion (2012 : RMB1.886 billion),
the equivalens of US$300 million as a¢ the end of 2013, Additionally, shares in six of its subsidiaries
are charged In favour of the global security agent and trustee of Notes 2017.

In 2011, six of its subsidiaries provided a joint guarantce in respect of Notes 2018 issucd by the
Company amounting lo RMB2.520 billion {equivalent to USS400 mitlion) for a term of seven years
up to March 29, 2018. The joint guaraniee approximates RMB2.439 billion (2012 : RMB2.514
billion), the equivaient of USS400 million as at the end of 2013, Additienally, shares in six of its
subsidiaries are charged in favour of the global security agent and trusiee of Notes 2018.

In 2013, the Company and five of its subsidiaries provided a joint guarantee in sespect of Notes 2016
issued by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company amounting to RMB2.000 biltion for a term of
three years up to May 22, 2016 (Note 37). Additionally, shares in five of ils subsidiaries are charged
in Favour of (e globat security agent and trustee of Notes 2016.
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17

TRADE PAYABLES

QOutside parzics

The average credit peried for trade payables is 195 days (2012 ; 207 days).

OTHER PAYABLES

Advances veceived from customers

Accruzd expenses
Interest payable
Other payables

REVENUE

Grass income from property development

Less: Business tax

Net income from properly development

Gross income from property investment

Less: Business tax

Net income from proparty investment

Gross income from others
Less: Business fax
Net income from others

Total

GROUP

2013 2012

RMB'000  RMB'000

5.077,788 3.694.139

GROUP COMPANY
2013 2012 2013 2012
RMB'O00  RMB'O00 RMB'O00  RMB'000
6,076,309 4,757,436 . .
55,847 46,590 3,203 3,327
147,761 127,780 103,806 107,853
328,813 288,123 - -
6,608,820 219,929 107,000 115,80

GROUP

2013 2012

RMB'000 RMB'000

11,i94,259 10,287,971

(624.637)  _ (579,683

10,569,622 9,708,288

522,118 427,078

{68,240) (57,072)

453 878 370,006

276,855 240,384

{20,246) {16,811}

256,608 293,573

11,280,100  10,301.867
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29

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Dividend income from available-for-sale investment
Dividend income from held-for-trading investment
Fair value gain on investment properties (Note 8)
Eair value gain on held-for-trading invesiment

Gain on put option written off

Interest income

Met gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net gain on disposal of invesiment properties

Nel gain on disposat of available-for-sale nvestment
Payable written off

Waiver of interest expense from a related party

Net foreign exchange gain

Government subsidies

Others

Total

FINANCE COST

Interest on bank loans
Interest on convertible notes
Inicrest on senior notes
Interest to ultimate holding company {Note 5)
Interest to non-controlling sharcholders of subsidiaries
Total borrowing costs
Less: Interest capilalised in
- propenties for development
- properties under development for sale
Net
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GROUP

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
- 30,157
209 213
572,058 664,424
71 6,619
- 5,187
42,062 37,659
- 14,134

1,091 -
- 129,945
- 10,774
- 27,430
- 193,285
13,515 22,118
7510 7.681
36,528 §.149.627
GROUP

013 2012
RMB'000 RMB'000
615,809 634,411
35,469 116,256
511,208 459,424
3,429 1,534
30,619 13,621
1,196,534 1,225,246
(111,539) (324,200}
(876,953) (142 237
208087 138809
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GROUP
013 2012
RMB'000 RMB'000
Current - Foreign 741,992 685,015
Deferred income tax (Note 15) 94,839 221,819
Deferred withholding tax {Note 15) 86,187 110,158
Land appreciation 1ax {"LAT") 705,225 669,618
Under {Over) provision in prior years 17,626 (1.423)
Total 1,645,869 1.685.187

No provisica for Singapore taxation has been made as the majority of the Group’s income neither
arises in, nor is derived from Singapore.

in 2013 and 2052, alt taxation arising in the PRC is cajculated at the prevailing rate of 25%.

The income tax expense varied from the amount of income tax expense determined by applying the
ahove income tax rate to profit before income tax as a result of the following differences:

GROUP
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000

Income tax expense at PRC applicable ax rate of 25%*

(2012 : 235%%) 934,492 1,034,238
Non-deductible items 90,690 18,989
Non-taxable ilems (36,382) (33,369
Effect of unutilised tax fosses not recognised as deferred tax assets 21,501 13,690
Effect of differcnt tax rates for certain subsidiarics 76 72
LAT 705,225 669,618
Effect of tax deduction on LAT {176,306) {164,367)
Witklholding tax incurred 86,187 110,158
Under (Over) provision in prior years 17,626 (1,423)
Others 2,760 38,081
Total incorne tax expense 1,545,869 1,685,187

#  These are the applicable tax rates for most of the Group's taxable profits.
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INCOME TAX (Cont'd}
Incomte 1ax for overseas subsidiaries is caleulated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictien.

According to a PRC lax circular of State Administration of Taxation, Guoshuihan (2008) No.112,
dividend distributed out of the profits generated since January 1, 2008 held by the PRC entity 10 non-
resident iavestors shall be subject to PRC withholding income tax. Deferred tax liability of RMBB6
million (20§3 : RMBI10 million) on the undistribuied earnings of the PRC subsidiaries has been
charged 10 the consolidated statement of profit or loss of the year.

LAT
As disclosed in the prior years' audited consolidated financial statements, the directors of the

Company, after 1aking into account legal advice received and consuliation with the local Shanghai
Pudong Tax Bureau, are of the opinion that the relevant tax authority is not likely to impose any LAT

on a retrospective basis. In 2013 and 2012, management has not recejved any new communications |

from the Shanghai Pudong Tax Bureau specific to LAT for propenties sold by the Group in Shanghai
Pudong New District prior to Cetober 1, 2006 which cause the above management’s evaluation to
change. Accordingly, no provision has been made in respect of those properties sold in Pudeng New
District prior lo October 1, 2006.

If LAT was to be fevied on the Group’s Shanghai Pudong New District properties in accordance with
the Provisional Repulations on a retrospective basis, the Group would have incurred additionat LAT
in the aggregate amount of RMB534 million for the financial periods prior to October I, 2006, net of
adjustment for non-controlling interesis and for income {ax deductions. Should any of these
exposures malerialise, the Group's net profit will be impacted by the same amount.

The management of the Company is of the view that the actual LAT payable as required under the
Provisional Regulations approximates the amount of LAT actually paid and accrued by the Group for
the PRC subsidiaries as at Decernber 31, 2013,

The aclual Group's LAT liabilities are subject to the determinaticn by the tax authorities upon
campletion of the properly development projects,
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PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging (craditing):
GROUP
2013 7 2012
RMB’(00 RMB'000

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 15418 34,994

Ewplovee bensfits expense (including directors' remuneration);

Retirement benafit scheme contributions 44,217 31,031
Salarjes and other shori-term benefits 432,168 356.948
Total employec benefits expense 476,380 387,979
Directors' fees 1,956 2,015
Dizectors’ remunsration:
- of the Company 23,427 28,716
- of the subsidiarics 5918 3,173
3933 L 3L8%
Afllowance for doubtful debts and bad debts written off 4] -
Fair value gain on investment properties (Note 8) (572,058) {664,424)
Fair vaiue gain on held-for-trading investment {1 (6,619
Loss on redemption on convertible notes - 8,198
Net loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment m (14,134)
Net (2ain} loss on disposal of investment praperties (1,081) 16,437
Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale investment - {129,946)
Net foreign exchange loss (gain) 97,598 {193,285)
Ceost of completed propertics for sale recognised as expenses 7,006,238 6,314,144
Audit fees:
- paid to audilors of the Company 3,879 3,822
- paid to ather auditors 1,395 1,339
Total audit fees 5,374 5,161
Won-audit fees:
- paid to auditors of the Company 82 17}
- paid to ather auditors §,147 1.095
Total non-audit fees 1,236 1,266
Aggregale amount of fees paid to auditors 6,610 6,427

% In 2013, total non-zudit fees paid 1o auditors of the Cormpany in cornection with the issvance of
senior notes by the Group have been capitalised in the carrying amount of the senjor notes
{Note 243,
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EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the ordinary equily haolders
of the Company is based on the following data:
GROUP
2013 2012
RMB'000 RMB'000
Eamings

Earnings for the purposes of basic earnings per share
{profit for the year aitributable to equity holders

of the Company) 1,473,753 1,823,498
Effect of dilutive potentiat ordinary shares duve to
interests on convertible notes 6,535 4,282

Eamings for the purposes of diluted carnings per share

1,480,228 1,827,780

GROUP
2013 2012
o0 000
Number of shares
Weighted average nwnber of ordinary shares
for the purposes of basic earnings per share 1,948,736 1,948,736
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
due to coavertible noles 27,618 091,397
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purposes of diluted earnings per share 1,976,354 2,040,133
GROLUP
2013 2012
Earnings per share (Remuninbi cents):
Basic 75.63 93.57
Diluted 74.90 39.59
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34

DIVIDENDS

fn 2013, RMBI81,362,980 of dividends was paid in respect of a first and [inal one-tier tax exempt
dividend of 9,31 Renminbi cents (equivalent 10 1.86 Singapore cents) per ordinary share declared for
the financial year ended December 31, 2012.

[n respect of the current year, {he directors proposed a first and final one-tier tax exempt dividend of
6.40 Renminbi cents (equivalent to 1.30 Singapore cents) per ordinary share amounting to
RMB124,800,786. The dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the Anmual General
Meeting and has not been included as a liability in these financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's reporiable oparating sepmenis are as follows:

(i)  Property development: Development of residential, commerciat and other propertics,

(i) Property investment: Leasing of properties to generate rental income and fo gain from the
appreciation in the value of the properties i the long teen.

(iii) Others: Provision of property management, ancillary services, invesiment holding and others.
Informalion reparding the operations of each reportable segments are included below. The
management monitors the operating results of each operaling segment for the purpose of making

decisions on resource allocalion and performance assessment.

The Group's operations are located in the PRC, hence no analysis by geographical area of operations
is provided.
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Segment revenue and resulls

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by reportable segment:

GROUP
Profit (loss)
Revenue before income 1ax
2013 2012 2013 2012
RMB'000 RMB'G00 RMB'000 RMB'0C0
Property development 10,569,622 9,708,288 3,221,482 3,730,358
Property investment 453,878 370,006 712,934 760,352
Others 256,609 223,573 {196,448) 246,242
Total 11,280,109 10,301,867 3,737,968 4,136,953

Segment profit vepresents the profit earned by each segmens as determined using the Group's
accounting policy. This is thc measure reporied to the chief operating decision maker for the
pusposes of resources allocation and assessment of segment perfonmance.

Segment assels

GROQUP
2013 2012
RMB'000 RMB'000
Property development 49,333,375 45,137,404
Property investment 9,784,136 8,339,748
Others 2,321,444 321,964
Total assets 61439005 34,299,116

Al assers are allocated to reportable segmenss. Liabilities are not allocated as they are not monitored
by the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Other segment information

GROUP
Additions to
Bepreciation RON-CUrrent asscis
2013 2012 013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000
Proparty development 17,863 18,374 2,343,686 3,725,388
Property investment 15,427 14,506 217,536 116,960
Cthers 4,203 5,452 12,404 5,199
Total 17,493 W42 2.573.626 3,847,547

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as leasee
GROUP

2013 2012
RMB'000 RMB'000

Minimum lease payments under operating leases
recognised as an expense in the year 16,312 15,799

At tle end of the reporting period, the Group has outstanding cotnaitments under non-cancclable
operating leases, which fall due as follows:

GROUP
2013 2012
RMB'000 RMB'000
Within onc year 16,916 12,275
In the second 1o [ilth year inclusive 23,315 16,831
More than five years 17,962 9,418

=.38303 3852

Operating lease paymenls substantially represent rental payables by the Group in respect of land and
buildings for its office premises and staff accommodation. Leases are negotiated for an average term
of less Hizn 4 years (2012 : less than 2 years).
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OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as lessor

The Group rents out its investment properties and certain completed propertics for sale in the
PRC under operaling leases. Property rental income earnad duving the year was RMB436 million

(2012 : RMB366 million).

At the end of the reparting period, the Group has contracted with tenams for the following future
minimum lease receipts:

GRQUP
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'300
Within one year 272,913 291,075
In the second to fifth year inclusive 606,013 605,954
More than five years 760,711 815,831

LE96T L1280

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS

Estimated amounts commitled for fulre capital expenditure but not provided for in the financial
statements:

GROUP
2013 2012
RMEB'CO0 RMB'000
Investment properties 5,453 73,610
Others 1,142 448
5,505 14,058
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CONTINGENCIES AND GUARANTEES

As at December 31, 2013, the Group has provided guarantees of approximately RMBI.565 billion
(2012 : RMB2.436 billion) to banks for the benefit of its customers in respect of mortgage loans
provided by the banks to these customers for the purchase of the Group's developmem properties.
Shiouid such guarantees be called upon, there would be an outflow of cash (previousty collected by the
Group) from the Group 1o the banks to discharge the oblipations. The management has ade
enquirics with the banks and considered the profile of custoimers who bought the Group’s propertics
and concluded that the fikelihood of these guaraniees being called upon is low., These guarantees
provided by the Group lo the banks would be released upon receiving the building ownership
certificate of the respective properties by the banks from the customers as security for the mortgage
loan granted,

As at December 31, 2013, the Company, together with five of its subsidiaries, has provided a jeint
guarantee in respect of senior notes issued by a wholly-owned subsidiary amounting to RMB2.000
billion for a term of less than three years up 1o May 22, 2016.

As at December 31, 2013, the Company, together with five of its subsidiaries, has provided joint
guaraatees to banks in respect of the following loan Macilities granted 10 a subsidiary:

. A loan facility amounting o RMBOLS million {equivalent to US$150 million) {2012 : RMB943
million {equivalent to US$150 million)) for a remaining term of less than ong year up 1o July 3,
2014. The loan facility was fully drawn down as at the end of 2013 and 2012,

. A loan facility amounting to RMB622 million {equivalent to US$102 million) (2012 : RMB754
million (equivalent to USS120 million)) for a remaining lerm of less han wo years up o
May §3, 2015. The loan facility was fully drawn down as at the end of 2013 and 20J2.

. A loan facility amounting (o RMB305 million {equivalent to US$50 million) (2012 : RMB314
million {(equivalent to US$50 mitlion)) for a remaining term of less than two yeass up to
December 30, 2015, The Joan facility was fully drawn down as at the end of 2013
{2012 : RMB3 million (equivalent to U53450,000)).
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CONTINGENCIES AND GUARANTEES (Cont'd)

As at December 31, 2013, the Company has provided a guarantee to 2 bank in respect of a
foan facility granted to a subsidiary amounting to RMB203 miilion (equivalent 1o $543 million)
{20:2 : RMB235 millien (equivalent to S350 million)) for a remaining term of less than one year up
lo Scptember 19, 2014. The loan facility was fully drawn down as at the end of 2013 and 2012,

As at December 31, 2013, the Company has provided a guarantee fo a non-controlling shareholder of
subsidiaries in respect of an inlerest-free current advance o a subsidiary amounting to RMB90 million
(equivalent to US315 million) {2012 : RMBS3 million {equivalent 10 USSI5 million)).

As at December 31, 2013, the jointly controlled cntity Singapore Intefligent Eco Esland Development
Pte. Ltd, (“SIEID") has pledged its shares in the jointly controlled entity Sino-Singapore Nanjing Eco
Hi-tech Islard Development Co., Ltd, (“SINEHID™) to financial instirutions as secuwrity for credit
facilities used by a wholly-owned subsidiary of SSNEHID for property developmen:. SIEID's
contingent Hability under this pledge of its shareholding in SSNEBID is limiied to an amount of
RMBS528 million (2012 : RMBG0G million). A subsidiary of the Company has provided guarantee of
RMB40} million (2012 : RMB456 million} for the same credit facilities.

The management is of the view that the fair vatue of the financial guarantee provided by the Group
and the Company is not significant,
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